Township of McMurrich/Monteith
Regular Council Meeting - Agenda
Tuesday, August 19, 2025 — 7:00pm

Meeting to be held inside Municipal Office/Fire Hall

1. Call to Order:

2. Confirmation of the minutes of the previous meeting:
2.1 Council — August 5, 2025

3.  List of proposed resolutions for the meeting:

4.  Declaration of pecuniary interest and general nature thereof:
- should a member have a disclosure of pecuniary interest they are to declare the nature thereof now
or at any time during the meeting

5. Delegations:
5.1 Judy Kleinhuis, Grant Thornton — 2024 draft Financial Statements

5.2 Administration: written report

6.  Business Arising From a Previous Meeting:
6.1 Consent File 029, 030 + 031/24 — Consent Agreement/Easement condition (Con 7, Pt Lot 15)

7. Quotes, Tenders, RFP’s:
None

8.  Accounts for Approval:
None

9.  Applications:
9.1 Consent Files B-035, 036, 037/25 — Con 12, Part Lot 16 (2187644 Ontario Limited), Little Falls Rd

10. Bylaws:
10.1 36-2025 Confirm Council Meeting — August 5, 2025

11. Council Reports:
None

12. Correspondence:
12.1  Ministry of Solicitor General — News Release — Fire Protection Grant increasing

13. New Business:
None

14. Closed Session: Section 239 (2),



15. Council Concerns:
16. Adjournment:

Dates to Remember:
Saturday, August 237 — Hazardous Waste Collection Day — Strong Twp Landfill Site — 10am -2pm

Thursday, August 28" — Almaguin Community Economic Development Meeting — 6pm — Strong Twp Office
Tuesday, September 2" + 16" — Regular Council Meetings — 7pm

Tuesday, September 9" — Recreation Committee Meeting — 7pm

Saturday, October 18" - Recreation Event - Oktoberfest



The Council of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith met Tuesday, August 5, 2025

P

PN%ZO S

MINUTES OF McMURRICH/MONTEITH TOWNSHIP
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING - TUESDAY, AUGUST 5, 2025

inside the Council Chambers.

Present: Mayor: Glynn Robinson; Council Members: Vicky Roeder-Martin,
Daniel O'Halloran, Terry Currie, and Craig White.

Staff present: John Theriault, CAO, Cheryl Marshall, Clerk/Treasurer, Joe
Readman, Fire Chief, Neil Hellam, Public Works Supermfenden’r and Doug Godin,

CBO.

Audience:

Jim Hoo, Kevin Estey, Robert Fletcher, Craig Ritchie, Renee Van

Vuuren, Joanne Porretta, Brad Hunt

Opening of the meeting by the Mayor -
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM.

2. Confirmation of the minutes of the previous meeting:
2.1 Council = July 15, 2025, as presen’red
2.2 Recreation Committee — May 26, June 10, July 8 and 17, 2025, as
amended.
3. List of proposed resolutions for the meeting:
4. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest and the nature thereof:
none
5. Delegations:
5.1 Kevin Estey, Bob Fletcher and Jim Hoo made a presentation to

5.2

Council requesting that the “Seasonal Maintenance” road sign on
Old Novar Road be moved to include an extra enfrance. Council
discussed this issue and the Public Works Superintendent will contact
the Town of Huntsville to inquire if the change is feasible.

Public Works Report: The new Public Works Superintendent, Neil
Hellam, was introduced to Council. He presented his report which
was discussed with Council. Council welcomed the new Public Works
Superintendent to the Township of McMurrich/Monteith and wished
him the best. Council had a concern about how Bell cabling is being

installed on Stisted Road.
August 5, 2025

Council Minutes
Page | 1

&)o



10.

53

54

55

5.6

Fire Chief Report: The Fire Chief presented his report which was
discussed by Council.

Building Reports: The Chief Building Official presented three reports to
Council. The first was to obtain a resolution to support that the
Township would take over approvals for septic systems from the
Conservation Authority. Council passed a resolution supporting this
endeavor. The second and third reports were to request
amendments to the Zoning By-law to reduce the minimum size of a
principal residence and to rescind the exceptions which give owners
the right to build an accessory building before a principal dwelling.
Council passed two resolutions suppOrﬁng these requests and asking
staff to prepare the amendments.

Administration Reports: Council reviewed the administration report.
Staff will be bringing forward an amended trailer by-law and fees and
charges by-law at the next Council meeting. Council also discussed
the result of the tender for the replacement of the Axe Lake Road
Bridge and the repairs of the Little Folls Bridge. Council passed a
resolution awarding the tender. L

CAO Report: Council reviewed d report from the CAO on the
delegation requesting some support to maintain the driveway at 548
East Bear Lake Road. Council passed a resolution supporting the
recommendation included in the report.

Business arising From a Previous Meeting;

None
Quotes, Tenders, RFP's;
None
Accounts for Approval:
Council reviewed the accounts for July, 2025.
Applications:

None

By-laws:

34-2025 Confirm Council Meeting - July 15, 2025

10.1

August 5, 2025
Council Minutes
Page | 2



2025-17510.235-2025 Authorize vote by mail for the 2026 municipal
election.
See resolutions below.

11. Reports:
None

12. Correspondence:
12.1 Belvedere Heights — Update on 22 private room addition.

12.2 MAHC Political Leaders Forum Minutes of July 10, 2025.

12.3 OPP - Distribution of police record check revenues.

124 BFAR Union Library — Minutes of the May 22, 2025 meeting.

12.5 Twp of Otonabee-South Monaghan - Resolution — amend
Proceeds of Crime and Terrorist Financing Act. Council supported
this resolution |

12.6 ACED - Meeting package - July 24th, 2025

12.7 Twp of Perry and Seguin - Resolutions - Removal from North Bay
Mattawa Conservation Authority for septic approvals

See resolutions below. '

13, New Business: None

14. Closed session, section 239 2, Non_e

15. Council Concerns:
Mayor Robinson requested a training session with Council and
Department heads in closed session. Date to be determined.

16. Adjournment: Council adjourned this meeting at 8:55pm. See resolution
below.

Resolutions:

2025-172  White/O'Halloran
Be It Resolved that Council approves the minutes of the Regular Council meeting held

July 15, 2025.Carried

2025-173 Roeder-Martin/Currie
Be It Resolved that Council receives the minutes of the Recreation Committee meetings
held May 26, June 10, July 8 & 17, 2025, as amended. Carried

August 5, 2025
Council Minutes
Page | 3



2025-174 White/O’Halloran

Be It Resolved that Council for the Township of McMurrich/Monteith hereby supports and
directs that a formal request be submitted to the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing
to delegate authority to the Corporation of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith under
the Building Code Act for the administration and enforcement of the Ontario Building
Code, specifically as it relates to sewage systems for all properties within the Township of
McMurrich/Monteith. And that Council cofirms the Township has qualified and capable
municipal staff to undertake and fulfill the responsibilities of this delegated authority.
Carried

2025-175 O’Halloran/White -

Be It Resolved that Council supports the recommendation from Doug Godin, Chief
Building Official and directs Staff to prepare a draft Zoning Bylaw Amendment to reduce
the minimum dwelling size requirement in 'fhe Township of McMurrich/Monteith from 74
square metres (796.53 square feet) to 18.58 sq"L_ior_e metres (200 square feet), in alignment
with the minimum functional dwelling unit size prescribed by the Ontario Building Code,
as amended. Carried

2025-176 O’Halloran/White _

Be It Resolved that Council supports the recommendation from Doug Godin, Chief
Building Official and directs Staff to prepare a draft Zoning Bylaw Amendment to remove
the exception for both the storage container and the 25 Square metre shed from Section
3.1.3 and replace with “No accessory building or structure shall be erected on any lof
until the principal building has been erected, with the excepftion of: temporary
construction uses or a garage during the term of an active building permit for the
principal building, or a septic system, or dock.” Carried

2025-177 Currie/Roeder-Martin

Be It Resolved that Council receives the report from D.M. Wills Associates Limited relating
to Tender 2025-07 — Replacement of Axe Lake Road Bridge and accepts the
recommendation to award the tender to McPherson-Andrews Contracting Ltd. at the
bid amount of $416,018.00. This bid also included the rehabilitation works at Little Falls
Road bridge. Carried

2025-178 Currie/Roeder-Martin

Be It Resolved that the Staff Report from the Chief Administrative Officer dated August 5,
2025, regarding the July 15" delegation for 548 East Bear Lake Road and that Council
direct staff to advise the delegates, that the Township of McMurrich/Monteith would only
take over the driveway at 548 East Bear Lake Road if it was upgraded o the municipal
standards for a road and fransferred to the Township. Carried

August 5, 2025
Council Minutes
Page | 4



2025-179 Currie/Roeder-Martin
Be It Resolved that Council accepts first, second and third readings and hereby passes
Bylaw 34-2025 to confirm the council meeting held July 15, 2025. Carried

2025-180 Currie/Roeder-Martin
Be It Resolved that Council accepts first, second and third readings and hereby passes
Bylaw 35-2025 to authorize voting by mail for the 2026 Municipal Election. Carried

2025-181 O’Halloran/White

Be It Resolved that Council supports Resolution R191-2025 from the Township of
Otonabee-South Monaghan relating to opposing Bill C-2 which amends the Proceeds of
Crime & Terrorist Financing Act making it a criminal offense for any business, profession,
or charitable entity to accept cash payments, donations, or deposits of $10,000 or more
in a single transaction regardless of their lawful nature. Carried

2025-182 Currie/Roeder-Martin
Be It Resolved that Council receives all correspondence listed on the agenda. Carried

2025-183 Currie/Roeder-Martin
Be It Resolved that Council adjourns this meeting at 8:55pm until Tuesday, August 19, 2025
at 7:00 pm.

Mayor, Glynn Robinson Clerk, Cheryl Marshall

August 5, 2025
Council Minutes
Page | 5



\n
™
&

_M ¥ Doane
i O GrantThornton

McMurrich / Monteith

For the year ended Umoo_,:cm_._mﬁ 2024

Report to Council |
Audit strategy and results

August 19, 2025

Judy Kleinhuis, CPA, C
Principal — :

T 7054756517 ;
E Judy.Kleinhuis@ca.gt.com



Contents

Executive summary

Audit risks and results

Adjustments and uncorrected misstatements
Other reportable matters

Technical updates — highlights

@w ~N o w

Appendices

Appendix A — Overview and approach
Appendix B — Audit plan and risk assessment
Appendix C — Auditing developments

Appendix D — Accounting developments
Appendix E — Cybersecurity

Appendix F — Draft independent auditor's report

Appendix G — Draft Management representation letter

Report to Council - Audit strategy and results
The Corporation of the Township of McMurrich / Monteith | For the year ended December 31, 2024



Executive summary

Purpose of report and scope

The purpose of this report is to engage in an open dialogue with you regarding our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the Township

of McMurrich / Menteith (the "Municipality”) for the year ended December 31, 2024.

This communication will assist Council in understanding our overall audit strategy
and results of audit procedures and includes comments on misstatements,
significant accounting policies, sensitive estimates and other matters.

The information in this document is intended solely for the information and use of
Council and management. It is not intended to be distributed or used by anyone

other than these specified parties.

We have obtained our engagement letter dated December 9, 2024, which outlines
our responsibilities and the responsibilities of management.

We were engaged to provide the following deliverables:

Deliverable

[Timing/Status]

Report on the December 31, 2024 consolidated financial
statements

Report on the December 31, 2024 trust funds financial
statements

Communication of audit strategy and results

Status of our audit

We have substantially completed our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Municipality and the results of that audit are included in this report.

We will finalize our report upon resolution of the following items that were
outstanding as at August 19, 2025:

« Receipt of signed management representation letter (a draft has been attached
in Appendix G)

« Approval of the consolidated financial statements by Council

« Procedures regarding subsequent events

Our responsibility is to form an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are also required to communicate matters that impact our standard auditor's

report, including key audit matters or modifications to the reports.

A copy of our draft auditor’s opinion is included in Appendix F.

Report to Council - Audit strategy and resulls
The Corporation of the Township of McMurrich / Monteith | For the year ended December 31, 2024

1



Approach

Our audit approach requires that we establish an overall strategy that focuses on
risk areas. We identify and assess risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. The greater the
risk of material misstatement associated with an area of the consolidated financial
statements, including disclosures, the greater the audit emphasis placed on it in
terms of audit verification and analysis. Where the nature of a risk of material

misstatement is such that it requires special audit consideration. it is classified as a
significant risk.

Our approach is discussed further in Appendices A and B.

Report to Council - Audit strategy and results
The Corporation of the Township of McMurrich / Monteith | For the year ended December 31, 2024

2



Audit risks and results

We have executed our audit in accordance with our approach summarized in Appendices A and B. We highlight our significant findings in respect of economic factors,
significant transactions, risks, accounting practices and other areas of focus.

Significant risks

Area of focus

Why there is a risk Our response and findings

Fraud risk from revenue There is a presumed risk of fraud in revenue. Reviewed grant agreements to ensure grant stipulations were being met.
PREOGES The risk primarily relates to revenue recognized under revenue from Traced a sample of transactions to verify that the grant expenditure was eligible
grants. and recognized in the correct period.

There is a risk that surplus grant revenue received will not be repaid by No exceptions noted,
recognizing fictitious or ineligible expenditures.

There is also a risk that revenue from conditional grants will be
recognized prior to stipulations under the grant agreement being met.

Fraud risk from management This is a presumed fraud risk.

Procedures performed to test journal entries and accounting estimates.
override

The risk primarily relates to the fact that management can use journal No exceptions noted.
entries to override internal controls.

Fraud risk from _mmx of A lack of segregation of duties increases the risk of errors and fraud For employees who have access to the payroll Masterfile, agree their pay rate
segregation of duties

going undetected. from the payroll Masterfile to the approved pay rates (per Council Resolution
The risk primarily relates to unauthorized changes to pay rates by those ~ and/or new HR Policies and Procedures Manual appendices).

who have access to the payroll Masterfile. No exceptions noted.

Report to Council - Audit strategy and results
The Corporation of the Township of McMurrich / Monteith | For the year ended December 31, 2024 3



Accounting practices

Area of focus

PS 3400 Revenue

Accounting estimates

Section PS 3400 provides a framework for recognizing revenue by
distinguishing between revenue that arises from transactions that include
performance obligations from transactions that do not have performance
obligations.

As per the new Section, revenues, including gains, are defined as

increases in economic resources, either by way of increases of assets or
decreases of lia
of the accounting period.

Significant accounting estimates include estimated useful lives of tangible

capital assets and asset retirement obligations.

es, resulting from operations, transactions, and events

Our response and findings

On January 1, 2024, the Municipality adopted PS 3400 prospectively.

The Municipality has identified performance obligations associated with
building permits, including inspections and approvals. Revenue from
building permits is recognized when these performance obligations are
satisfied, either at a point in time upon issuing the permit or over time
through ongoing inspections and approvals,

At December 31, 2024, the Municipality recorded deferred building

permit revenue of $93,536 of which $23,181 relates to building fees
collected prior to January 1, 2024,

Tangible capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives of tangible capital assets
are determined by Council from historical information and results and
were approved through by-law #3-2009. Amortization expense in 2024
appears reasonable based on estimated useful lives per by-law #3-
2009.

An asset retirement obligation relating te landfill closure and post-closure
care reqguirements has been identified in accordance with industry
standards. Estimated expenditures related to the closure and
subsequent maintenance of this site is recognized in the financial
statements at the date the legal obligation arose, over the operating life
of the site, and in proportion to its utilized capacity. This estimate
includes management's assumptions on inflation rate and discount rate.
Based on our audit procedures, we have concluded that management's
estimated ARO relating to landfill closure and post-closure care
requirement appears reasonable. No ARO has been recorded for
asbestos in buildings, however, the amount is not material (and has been
reported as an unadjusted misstatement on page 5).

Report to Council - Audit strategy and results

The Corporation of the Tewnship of McMurrich / Monteith | For the year ended December 31, 2024

4



Adjustments and uncorrected
misstatements

Adjustments

We have no adjusted misstatements to report.

Uncorrected misstatements

Our audit identified the unadjusted non-trivial misstatements noted below.

Increase (Decrease) Balance sheet Income effect
Description Assets Liabilities Equity Earnings
To record asset retirement obligation (for asbestos) $3,558 $20,808 $(16,617) $(633)
Total uncorrected misstatements $3,558 $20,808 $(16,617) $(633)

We have discussed the unadjusted misstatement with management and requested that the identified amounts be adjusted. The amounts have not been adjusted since the

adjustment is an estimate that is not considered material to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole and would have no effect on decisions made by financial
statement users.

Report to Council - Audit strategy and results
The Corporation of the Township of McMurrich / Monteith | For the year ended December 31, 2024



Summary of disclosure matters

Our audit identified the unadjusted non-trivial misstatements of disclosure matters noted below:

¢ Commitment to share in the construction of a live fire burn unit with five other fire departments with the Municipality’s estimated maximum share of cost of
approximately $15,000.

We have discussed the unadjusted disclosure with management. The disclosure has not been included in the notes to the consolidated financial statements as it is not
considered material to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole and would have no effect on decisions made by financial statement users.

Report to Council — Audit strategy and results
The Corporation of the Township of McMurrich / Monteith | For the year ended December 31, 2024 ]



Other reportable matters

Internal control

The audit is designed to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting
to the extent necessary to plan the audit and to determine the nature, timing and
extent of our work. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control.

If we become aware of a deficiency in your internal control over financial reporting,
the auditing standards require us to communicate to Council those deficiencies we
consider significant. However, a financial statement audit is not designed to provide
assurance on internal control.

Based on the results of our audit, we did not identify any reportable observations.

Cybersecurity

Cybersecurity is the practice of protecting computers, data and other electronic
systems from malicious attacks. As organizations become increasingly dependent
on digital technology, the opportunities for cyber-criminals continue to grow. The
explosion of data generated by digital technology, combined with a new degree of
connectedness among organizations, means there is ripe opportunity for the
technologically savvy and criminally minded to take advantage.

A breach in cybersecurity could create a reputational risk to you, as well as
resulting in financial liabilities. As part of our risk assessment and planning
procedures, we inquire of management regarding whether any cybersecurity
breaches have been detected and, if we become aware of a breach or specific

cybersecurity risk, we consider the impact to the audit; however, a financial
statement audit is not designed to provide assurance on cybersecurity and should
not be relied upon to identify cybersecurity risks or breaches.

In Appendix E, we discuss the general nature of cybersecurity threats and how
organizations can go about improving cybersecurity.

Independence

We have a rigorous process where we continually monitor and maintain our
independence. The process of maintaining our independence includes, but is not
limited to:

« Identification of threats to our independence and putting into place safeguards to
mitigate those threats. For example, we evaluate the independence threat of any
non-audit services provided to the Municipality

« Confirming the independence of our engagement team members

We have determined that the following information should be brought to your
attention:

» New engagement quality management standards were released for fiscal
periods starting on or after December 15, 2022. Due to familiarity threat of the
engagement principal on the audit file, we introduced an engagement quality
reviewer for the 2024 year.

Report to Council — Audit strategy and results
The Corporation of the Township of McMurrich / Monteith | For the year ended December 31, 2024 7



Technical updates — highlights

Accounting

Accounting standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board that may affect the Municipality in future years include:

= Section PS 1202 Financial Statement Presentation
» Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector

Further details of the changes to accounting standards, including management's preliminary comments on their applicability to the Municipality, are included in Appendix D. If
you have any questions about these changes, we invite you to raise them during our next meeting. We will be pleased to address your concerns.

Assurance

Assurance standards issued by the AASB that may change the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the Municipality and our communication with Council
include:

+ Potential revisions to CAS 500 Audit Evidence

= Potential revisions to CAS 570 Going Concern

» Potential revisions to CAS 240 The Auditor's Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statement

» Proposed Canadian Standard on Sustainability Assurance (CSSA) 5000, General Requirements for Sustainability Assurance Engagements

Further details of the changes to assurance standards, including management's preliminary comments on their applicability to the Municipality, are included in Appendix C. If
you have any guestions about these changes, we invite you to raise them during our next meeting. We will be pleased to address your concerns.

Report to Council — Audit strategy and resulls
The Cerporation of the Township of McMurrich / Monteith | For the year ended December 31, 2024

8



Appendix A — Overview and approach

Our audit is planned with the objective of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
so that we are able to express an opinion on whether the consolidated financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian public sector

accounting standards. The following outlines key concepts that are applicable to the audit, including the responsibilities of parties involved, our general audit approach and
other considerations.

Role of Council ¢« Help set the tone for the organization by emphasizing honesty, ethical behaviour and fraud prevention

+ Oversee management, including ensuring that management establishes and maintains internal controls to provide reasonable assurance regarding
reliability of financial reporting

¢ Recommend the nomination and compensation of external auditors

+ Directly oversee the work of the external auditors including reviewing and discussing the audit plan

Role of management * Prepare financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards
* Design, implement and maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting processes, including controls to prevent and detect fraud
= Exercise sound judgment in selecting and applying accounting policies
= Prevent, detect and correct errors, including those caused by fraud
+ Provide representations to external auditors

= Assess quantitative and qualitative impact of misstatements discovered during the audit on fair presentation of the financial statements

Role of Doane Grant Thornton « Provide an audit opinion that the financial statements are in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards
L = Conduct our audit in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS)

e Maintain independence and objectivity

= Be aresource to management and to those charged with governance

= Communicate matters of interest to those charged with governance

= Establish an effective two-way communication with those charged with governance, to report matters of interest to them and obtain their comments on
audit risk matters




Audit approach

Our understanding of the Municipality and its operations drives our audit approach, which is risk based and specifically tailored to The Corporation of the Township of
McMurrich / Monteith.

The five key phases of our audit approach

Evaluating
internal
controls

Testing

Assessin
g accounts and

risk

Concluding
and reporting

transactions

Our approach

1. Planning +« We obtain our understanding of your operations, internal controls and information systems

« We plan the audit timetable together

2. Assessing risk + We use our knowledge gained from the planning phase to assess financial reporting risks

+ \We customize our audit approach to focus our efforts on key areas

3. Evaluating internal controls + We evaluate the design of controls you have implemented over financial reporting risks
+ We identify areas where our audit could be more effective or efficient by taking an approach that includes testing the controls

+ We provide you with information about the areas where you could potentially improve your controls

4. Testing accounts and ¢ We perform tests of balances and transactions
transactions ; ; . . ; % : e
ransachon * We use technology and tools, including data interrogation tools, to perform this process in a way that enhances effectiveness and efficiency

5. Concluding and reporting ¢ We conclude on the sufficiency and appropriateness of our testing

* We finalize our report and provide you with our observations and recommendations




Our tailored audit approach results in procedures designed to respond to an identified risk. The greater the risk of material misstatement associated with the account, class of
transactions or balance, the greater the audit emphasis placed on it in terms of audit verification and analysis.

Throughout the execution of our audit approach, we maintained our professional skepticism, recognizing the possibility that a material misstatement due to fraud could exist
notwithstanding our past experiences with the entity and our beliefs about management’s honesty and integrity.

Materiality

The purpose of our audit is to provide an opinion as to whether the consolidated financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards as at December 31, 2024. Therefore, materiality is a critical auditing concept and as such we apply it in all stages of our engagement.

The concept of materiality recognizes that an auditor cannot verify every balance, transaction or judgment made in the financial reporting process. During audit planning, we
made a preliminary assessment of materiality for the purpose of developing our audit strategy, including the determination of the extent of our audit procedures. During the
completion stage, we consider not only the quantitative assessment of materiality, but also qualitative factors, in assessing the impact on the consolidated financial statements,
our audit opinion and whether the matters should be brought to your attention.

Our materiality for the current audit was $100,000.

Fraud risk factor considerations

We are responsible for planning and performing the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement
caused by error or by fraud. Our responsibility includes:

« The identification and assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements due to fraud through procedures including discussions
amongst the audit team and specific inquiries of management

« Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence to respond to the fraud risks noted

+ Responding appropriately to any fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected and this is particularly true in relation to fraud.
The primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with those charged with governance and management.

We are required to communicate with you on fraud-related matters, including:

» Obtaining an understanding of how you exercise oversight of management's processes for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in the entity and the internal control
that management has established to mitigate these risks
+ Inquiring as to whether you have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

The following provides a summary of some of the fraud related procedures that are performed during the audit:

» Testing the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements



» Reviewing accounting estimates for biases
= Evaluating the business rationale (or the lack thereof) for significant transactions that are or appear to be outside the normal course of operations

Quality management

We have a robust system of quality management that forms a core part of our client service and is designed to ensure the firm is meeting its quality objectives by designing
responses to address identified quality risks. We combine numerous specific responses including the application of our internationally developed audit methodology, advanced
audit technology, rigorous review procedures, mandatory professional development requirements, and the use of specialists to consistently deliver high quality audit services to
our clients. We also monitor the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of each element of our system of quality management to ensure that we are appropriately
addressing the quality risks and to identify deficiencies and required remedial actions in the system of quality management. In addition to our internal processes, we are subject

to inspection and oversight by standard setting and regulatory bodies. We are proud of our firm's approach to quality management and would be pleased to discuss any aspect
with you at your convenience.

Data analysis software

We apply our audit methodology using advanced software tools. Doane Grant Thornton continues to invest in developing industry-leading advanced audit data analytics tools.

IDEA

IDEA Data Analysis Software is a powerful analysis tool that allows audit teams to read, display, analyze, manipulate, sample and extract data from almost any electronic
source. The tool has the advantages of enabling the audit team to perform data analytics on very large data sets in a very short space of time, while providing the checks,
balances and audit trail necessary to ensure that the data is not corrupted and that the work can be easily reviewed. SmartAnalyzer, an add-on to IDEA, further improves the

efficiency and effectiveness of the audit by providing automated routines for certain common analytical tasks, such as identifying unusual and potentially fraudulent journal
entries.



Appendix B — Audit plan and risk
assessment

We have executed our audit in accordance with our plan outlined below. We continually reassess the need for changes to our planned audit approach throughout the audit.

Risk assessment

Our risk assessment process identified certain significant risks, which are included under “Audit risks and results” in our report. In addition, we identified certain other areas
where we focused our attention as follows:

Risk area Why it is a risk area Audit procedures and fi

Tax Revenue The revenue and receivables from taxes levied may not be valid due to Test accounts receivable using statistical sampling.

taxpayer collections being misapplied by those recording the receipt. Review of tax revenue recorded in relation to 2024 tax by-law.

No exceptions noted.

Operating Expenses There is a risk that payables related to core activities are understated or not  Review supporting documentation and management estimates with
recorded in the correct period. respect to the completeness and accuracy of significant year end
accruals.

Perform subsequent payments testing.
No exceptions noted.

Tangible capital assets There is a risk that capital asset activity is not valid. Test significant additions for existence and to ensure adherence to
procurement policies.

No exceptions noted.



Group audit

In forming our opinion on the financial statements, we performed work on the financial information of the components as follows:

Component Component auditor Audit response and engagement team involvement

Almaguin Community Economic Development (“ACED”) Doane Grant Thornton LLP Doane Grant Thornton performed a financial statement audit on the

standalone financial statements of ACED using a lower materiality level.

Sufficient audit procedures were performed on ACED to issue a separate
opinion on the component’s financial statements.

We coordinated our audit efforts between engagements and discussed relevant audit matters such as materiality, risk assessment, areas of audit focus, timing and
required information for our audit of the consolidated financial statements.



Appendix C — Auditing developments

Canadian Auditing Standards (CASs) and other Canadian Standards issued by the AASB Effective date Assessment of applicability
None.

Canadian Auditing Standards (CASs) and other Canadian Standards approved by the AASB but not issued Effective date Assessment of applicability

None.

Canadian Exposure Drafts issued by the AASB Effective date Assessment of applicability

Potential revisions to CAS 500 Audit Evidence The comment period for the No impact on 2024 audit.
Exposure Draft ended on March

The current audit evidence standard was issued many years ago. Since then, developments in technology have affected 15, 2023. It is expected that the

how entities operate and process information and how audits are performed. In December 2020, the IAASB initiated a effective date for the revised

standard will be for periods
beginning in 2025, but the exact
effective date will depend on

To respond to changes in the information auditors use, including the nature and source of the information, a set of when the standard is approved.
attributes has been developed to enhance the auditor's principle-based judgments related to audit evidence in a wide

variety of circumstances. Enhancements and clarifications have also been made regarding the auditor's role when using

information prepared by management's expert

project to revise the current standard to respond to changes in the business environment. The Exposure Draft proposes
several key changes:

To modernise the standard and support a principles-based approach that recognises the evolution in technology, new
application material has been added, including explanations of how automated tools may affect auditor bias and
examples that recognise the use of technology by the entity or the auditor

To foster professional skepticism when making judgments about information to be used as audit evidence and sufficient
appropriate audit evidence, language has been added to emphasise the importance of maintaining professional
skepticism at various stages, such as when attempting to ensure that audit procedures are being designed and
performed in an unbiased manner




Canadian Exposure Drafts issued by the AASB

Effective date Assessment of applicability

Potential revisions to CAS 570 Going Concern

Auditors are required to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on the appropriateness of management's use of the
going concern basis of accounting and conclude on whether a material uncertainty exists in relation to going concern.
Financial statement users have raised questions about how much auditors should be able to detect from their audit
procedures in this area, and what is communicated to users about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. This
led the IAASB to initiate a project to revise the standard. In April 2023, the IAASB issued its Exposure Draft and the AASB
has issued a corresponding Exposure Draft. The Exposure Draft proposes several key changes, which include:

Defining material uncertainty related to going concern

Enhancing the risk identification and assessment requirements so they are consistent with those set out in CAS 315
(Revised) Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement

Enhancing the auditor's evaluation of management’s going concern assessment, including requirements to support the
auditor's application of professional skepticism

Adding a requirement for the auditor to request management to extend its going concern assessment of the entity to
cover at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements if management has not already done so

Enhancing the auditor's consideration of information related to management's going concern assessment that becomes
available to the auditor after the date of the auditor's report but before the date the financial statements are issued

Adding requirements to enhance communications about going concern in the auditor’s report

The comment peried for the
Exposure Draft ended on July 31,
2023. It is expected that the
effective date for the revised
standard will be for periods
beginning in 2026, but the exact
effective date will depend on
when the standard is approved.

No impact on 2024 audit.

Potential revisions to CAS 240 The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial
Statements

High quality audits contribute to the efficiency of capital markets and financial stability. In recent years, corporate failures
and scandals have brought the topic of fraud to the forefront and led to questions from stakeholders about the role and
responsibilities of the auditor relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements. This led the IAASB to initiate a project to
revise the standard. In February 2024, the IAASB issued its Exposure Draft and the AASB has issued a corresponding
Exposure Draft. The Exposure Draft proposes several key changes, which include:

Clarifying the roles and responsibilities of the auditor with respect to fraud
Establishing more robust requirements if fraud or suspected fraud is identified
Reinforcing the importance of exercising professional skepticism in fraud-related audit procedures

Strengthening communications through the audit with management and those charged with governance about matters
related to fraud

Adding transparency on fraud-related responsibilities and procedures in the auditor’s report

The comment period for the
Exposure Draft ended on May 6,
2024. It is expected that the
effective date for the revised
standard will be for periods
beginning in 2026 but the exact
effective date will depend on
when the standard is approved.

No impact on 2024 audit.




Canadian Exposure Drafts issued by the AASB

Effective date Assessment of applicability

Proposed Canadian Standard on Sustainability Assurance (CSSA) 5000, General Requirements for Sustainability
Assurance Engagements

In September 2022, the IAASB approved a project proposal to develop a new overarching standard for sustainability
assurance engagements. In January 2023, the AASB approved a project proposal to concurrently adopt this international
standard with any potential additional Canadian amendments, as a first of its kind Canadian Standard on Sustainability
Assurance (CSSA).

CSSA 5000 will not be a financial statement audit standard, but rather will serve as a comprehensive, standalone standard
suitable for sustainability assurance engagements. It will apply to sustainability information reported across any
appropriate sustainability topic, prepared according to any suitable framework, including the recently released IFRS
Sustainability Disclosure Standards S1 and S2. The proposed standard is profession agnostic, supporting its use by both
professional accountant and non-accountant assurance practitioners who meet the relevant ethical and quality
management requirements, and will apply to both limited and reasonable assurance engagements.

The comment peried for the No impact on 2024 audit.
Exposure Draft ended on

November 6, 2023. It is expected

that the effective date will be for

periods beginning in 2026, but

the exact effective date will

depend on when the standard is

approved.




Appendix D — PSAS
Accounting developments

Public Sector Accounting Standards [updated March 31, 2025]

Effective date

Management assessment
of applicability

Section PS 1202 Financial Statement Presentation

New Section PS 1202 Financial Statement Presentation replaces Section PS 1201 Financial Statement Presentation,
The main features of the new Section include:

.

Changes to the statement of financial position to present financial assets, non-financial assets, total assets, financial
liabilities, non-financial liabilities total liabilities and net assets/net liabilities

Separate statement of changes in net assets or net liabilities (formerly known as accumulated surplus) by required categories
The addition of a statement of net financial assets or net financial liabilities that presents a revised net financial assets or net
financial liabilities (formerly known as “net debt") calculation

The option to present the change in net financial assets or net financial liabilities on the statement of net financial assets or
net financial liabilities

Ability to present an amended budget when there is an election or the majority of the governing body of a government
organization is newly elected or appointed

The requirement to provide a subtotal prior to financing activities in the statement of cash flow

Guidance on assessing the going concern assumption

As a result of the issuance of the new Section, various Sections and Guidelines of the Handbook have been amended to
include references to the Section. The impacted Sections and Guidelines include:

.

PS 1300 Government Reporting Entity - PS 3260 Liability mo.a Ooﬁm_‘:._:mﬂmq. Sites
: - PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations
PS 2120 Accounting Changes ; S
: B PR - PS 3300 Contingent Liabilities
PS 2500 Basic Principles of Consolidation . PS 3310 Loan Guarantees
PS 2510 Additional Areas of Consolidation

PS 3400 Revenue
PS 3410 Government Transfers
PS 3430 Restructuring Transactions

.

PS 26801 Foreign Currency Translation

PS 3041 Portfolio Investments

PS 3080 Interest in Partnerships : ;

2 ; PS 3450 Financial Instruments

mwﬂwﬂ.\w% vestments in Government Business PS 4200 Financial Statement Presentation by Not-for-Profit
g Organizations

PS 3100 Restricted Assets and Revenues PSG-2 Leased Tangible Capital Assets

PS 3160 Public Private Partnerships PSG-4 Funds and R

PS 3230 Long-Term Debt ool i e R

PS 3250 Retirement Benefits mRipAlrceasenacl ransaclions

PS 3255 Post-Employment Benefits, Compensated
Absences and Termination Benefits

.

Fiscal years beginning on or
after April 1, 2026.

Earlier adoption is permitted
only if the Conceptual
Framework is also adopted at
the same time.

Prior period amounts would
need to be restated to conform
to the presentation
requirements for comparative
financial information in Section
PS 1202,

No impact on 2024
consolidated financial
statements




Public Sector Accounting Standards [updated March 31, 2025]

Effective date

Management assessment
of applicability

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector

PSAB'’s Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector replaces Sections PS 1000 Financial Statement
Concepts and PS 1100 Financial Statement Objectives.

The new Conceptual Framework includes:

- Characteristics of public sector entities

- Objectives of financial reporting

« Primary users of financial reporting and their expectations

« Role of financial statements

- Foundations and objectives of financial statements

- Qualitative characteristics of information in financial statements

» Qualitative characteristics of information in financial statements and related considerations
« Definitions of elements

« Criteria of general recognition and derecognition; and,
» Concepts of general measurement and presentation

As a result of the issuance of the Conceptual Framework, various Sections and Guidelines of the Handbook have been
amended to include references to the new Conceptual Framework, add/clarify key definitions that are consistent with the
Conceptual Framework, and/or remove references to qualitative characteristics that are no longer qualitative characteristics in
the new Conceptual Framework. These Sections include:

- Introduction to the Public Sector Accounting Handbook - PS 2200 Related Party Transactions
(formerly the Introduction to the Public Sector Accounting - PS 3150 Tangible Capital Assets
Standards) - PS 3200 Liabilities
- PS 1150 Generally accepted Accounting Principles « PS 3210 Assets
- PS 1201 Financial Statement Presentation - PS 3400 Revenue
- PS 1300 Government Reporting Entity « PS 3430 Restructuring Transactions
- PS 2100 Disclosure of Accounting Policies « PS 3450 Financial Instruments; and
- PS 2120 Accounting Changes - PS 4230 Capital Assets Held by Not-for-Profit Organizations

« PS 2130 Measurement Uncertainty

The Conceptual Framework will be applied prospectively.

Fiscal years beginning on or
after April 1, 2026.

Earlier adoption is permitted.

No impact on 2024
consolidated financial
statements




Appendix E — Cybersecurity

Cybersecurity is the practice of protecting computers, data, networks and other electronic systems from malicious attacks. Below, we summarize the cybersecurity threat and
how we can help you manage that threat.

Cybersecurity risk

How Doane Grant Thornton can help

As organizations become increasingly dependent on digital technology, storing valuable
information in multiple places, the opportunities for cyber criminals continue to grow. Cyber-
attacks today are more focused, skilful and ambitious, and geographical borders are
meaningless. Regulators and stakeholders, including customers, are increasing the pressure on
organizations to manage these risks. In order to properly protect themselves, organizations
must understand what weaknesses attackers could exploit, how to respond to security incidents
and how areas such as access to confidential data should be managed.

Management [needs to/should continue to] respond to these risks by:

Assessing the people, processes and technology associated with their cybersecurity
program, including management of the program, data security, cybersecurity awareness and
training, and assessment of external risks

Improving the cybersecurity function by remediating identified vulnerabilities, developing new
strategies, enhancing existing facilities, and establishing policies, controls and processes

Developing a cybersecurity breach or attack response plan, which involves providing training
for the people who will execute the response, determining the procedures that will be
followed, and securing external resources to support the process as needed

Raymond Chabot Grant Thornton, a Grant Thornton member firm based in Quebec, has a
specialist cybersecurity division, VARS Corporation (VARS), that is at the forefront of the
security industry.

VARS can help with:

Providing an integrated fully managed solution for securing your organization’s digital
environment. With VARS you will benefit from the most advanced cybersecurity sclutions in
the world, including solutions such as Terranova, Secure Exchanges, Perception Paint,
Cynet and Cyolo. VARS offers a customizable solution that is designed to meet all your
cybersecurity needs, from advanced email security to dark Web analysis.

24/7 workstation and server monitoring

Regardless of the size of your organization, VARS provides 24/7 access to a team of
cybersecurity experts at no additional cost and offers comprehensive real-time protection of
your environments using the best detection tools (XDR). This solution includes the support
of a specialized incident response teams that can intervene at any time, 365 days of the
year.

Virtual Chief Information Security Officers (CISOs)

VARS's virtual CISOs can empower and protect your organization without you having to
recruit a specialist or hire a full-time employee. They can help you to set priorities for
investments and implement a tailored protection plan that fully meets your needs and
situation.

The services and experiences described above are illustrative in nature and are intended to
demonstrate our experience and capabilities in these areas. However, due to independence
restrictions that apply to the [entity and its affiliates], we may be unable to provide certain
services as our ability to do so varies depending on individual facts and circumstances. If you
would like to discuss cybersecurity risks in more detail or learn more, we would be happy to
arrange a meeting. Additional information about VARS is available on the VARS website here:
www.varscorporation.com.




Appendix F — Draft
independent auditor’s report

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of
The Corporation of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith (“the
Municipality”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the

consolidated statements of operations and accumulated surplus, change in net financial assets and cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of The Corporation of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith as at December 31, 2024, and its results of operations,
its changes in its net financial assets, and its cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Municipality in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consoclidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Municipality's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to a going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Municipality or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Municipality’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they



could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality's internal
control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Municipality's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Municipality to cease to
continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business units within the group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contrel that we identify during our audit.

North Bay, Canada Chartered Professicnal Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants



Appendix G — Draft
management representation
letter

August 19, 2025

Doane Grant Thornton LLP
222 Mclintyre Street West
Suite 400

North Bay, ON P1B 2Y8

Dear Sir/Madam:

We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the
Township of McMurrich/Monteith (“the Municipality") and the Municipality’s Trust Funds as of December 31, 2024, and for the year
then ended, for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the consolidated financial statements and Trust Funds
financial statements (“financial statements”) present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results of operations,
change in net financial assets and cash flows of the Municipality and Trust Funds in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

We acknowledge that we have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for the design and implementation of internal controls to
prevent and detect fraud and error. We have assessed the risk that the consolidated financial statements may be materially
misstated as a result of fraud, and have determined such risk to be low. Further, we acknowledge that your examination was
planned and conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) so as to enable you to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We understand that while your work includes an examination of the
accounting system, internal controls and related data to the extent you considered necessary in the circumstances, it is not
designed to identify, nor can it necessarily be expected to disclose, fraud, shortages, errors and other irregularities, should any
exist.

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. An item is considered material,
regardless of its monetary value, if it is probable that its omission from or misstatement in the consolidated financial statements
would influence the decision of a reascnable person relying on the financial statements.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of August 19, 2025, the following representations made to you during your
audit.

Financial statements

1. The financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Municipality and
Trust Funds as at December 31, 2024 and the results of its operations, change in net financial assets and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, as agreed to in the terms of the audit

engagement.



Completeness of information

2.

We have made available to you all financial records and related data and all minutes of the meetings of Council and
committees of Council, as agreed in the terms of the audit engagement. Summaries of actions of recent meetings for which
minutes have not yet been prepared have been provided to you. All significant Council and committee actions are included in
the summaries.

We have provided you with unrestricted access to persons within the Municipality from whom you determined it necessary to

obtain audit evidence.

There are no material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records underlying the financial
statements.

There were no restatements made to correct a material misstatement in the prior period consolidated financial statements that

affect the comparative information.

We are unaware of any known or probable instances of non-compliance with the requirements of regulatory or governmental
authorities, including their financial reporting requirements.

We are unaware of any violations or possible violations of laws or regulations the effects of which should be considered for
disclosure in the financial statements or as the basis of recording a contingent loss.

We have disclosed to you all known deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting of which

we are aware.

We have identified to you all known related parties and related party transactions, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers
of assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements guarantees, non-monetary transactions and transactions for no

consideration.

Fraud and error

10.

11.

12.

13.

We have no knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Municipality involving management; employees who have
significant roles in internal control; or others, where the fraud could have a non-trivial effect on the financial statements,

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Municipality's financial statements
communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect
fraud.

We believe that there are no uncorrected financial statement misstatements relating to the Trust Fund financial statements.



14. We believe that the effects of the uncorrected financial statement misstatement summarized in the schedule below is
immaterial to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole:

Increase (Decrease)

Unadjusted misstatements Assets Liabilities | Accumulated Annual
Surplus Surplus
1| To record asset retirement obligation (for $ $ $ (16,617)

asbestos)

15. We believe that the effects of the uncorrected financial statement note disclosure summarized below is immaterial to the
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole:

+ Commitment to share in the construction of a live fire burn unit with five other fire departments with the Municipality’s
estimated maximum share of cost of approximately $15,000.

Recognition, measurement and disclosure

16. We believe that the significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those used in arriving at the
fair values of financial instruments as measured and disclosed in the financial statements, are reasonable and appropriate in

the circumstances.

17. We believe that the significant judgments made in recording asset retirement obligations have taken into account relevant
information of which management is aware. The assumptions appropriately reflect management's intent and ability to carry

out specific courses of action on behalf of the Municipality.

18. We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets and liabilities, both
financial and non-financial, reflected in the financial statements.

19. All related party transactions have been appropriately measured and disclosed in the financial statements.

20. The nature of all material measurement uncertainties has been appropriately disclosed in the financial statements, including
all estimates where it is reasonably possible that the estimate will change in the near term and the effect of the change could
be material to the financial statements.

21. All outstanding and possible claims, whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel, have been disclosed to you
and are appropriately reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Refer to Note 17 in the consolidated financial

statements.

22. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, whether written or oral, have been disclosed to
you and are appropriately reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

23. There are no “off-balance sheet” financial instruments in current year.

24. The Municipality did not purchase any derivative financial instruments during the year.



25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

With respect to environmental matters:

a) at year end, there were no liabilities or contingencies that have not already been disclosed to you;

b) liabilities or contingencies have been recognized, measured and disclosed, as appropriate, in the consolidated financial
statements; and

C) commitments have heen measured and disclosed, as appropriate, in the consolidated financial statements.

The Municipality and Trust Funds have satisfactory title to (or lease interest in) all assets, and there are no liens or
encumbrances on the Municipality's or Trust Fund’s assets nor has any been pledged as collateral.

We have disclosed to you, and the Municipality and Trust Funds have complied with, all aspects of contractual agreements
that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements in the event of non-compliance, including all
covenants, conditions or other requirements of all cutstanding debt.

The Goods and Services Tax (GST) and Harmonized Sales Tax (HST) transactions recorded by the Municipality are in
accordance with the federal and provincial regulations. The GST and HST liability/receivable amounts recorded by the

Municipality are considered complete.

Employee future benefit costs, assets, and obligations have been determined, accounted for and disclosed in accordance with
the requirements of Section 3255 Post-employment Benefits, Compensated Absences and Termination Benefits of the
Canadian public sector accounting standards issued by the Public Sector Accounting Board.

There have been no events subsequent to the balance sheet date up to the date hereof that would require recognition or
disclosure in the financial statements. Further, there have been no events subsequent to the date of the comparative financial
statements that would require adjustment of those financial statements and related notes.

Other

31.

We have considered whether or not events have occurred or conditions exist which may cast significant doubt on the
Municipality's ability to continue as a going concern and have concluded that no such events or conditions are evident.

Yours very truly,

Cheryl Marshall, Clerk/Treasurer



THE CORPORATION OF
THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2024




THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH
CONTENTS

Independent Auditor's Report

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements



Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of
The Corporation of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the Township of
McMurrich/Monteith (“the Municipality”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at December 31, 2024, and the consolidated statements of operations and accumulated surplus,
change in net f|nam:|a| assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of sngmf“ icant accountmg policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolldated fi nancial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of The Corporatlon of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith as at
December 31, 2024, and its results of operations, its. changes in its net financial assets, and its cash
flow for the year then ended in accordance wnth Ganadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance W|th Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated: Fmanc:a! Statemenrs section of our report. We are independent of the Municipality
in accordance with the elhlcal reqwrements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Municipality’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to a going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Municipality or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Municipality's financial reporting
process.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Municipality's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Municipality's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Municipality to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business units within the group as a basis for forming an
opinion on the group financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
review of audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

North Bay, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 7) 1,742,242 $ 1,991,334
Investments (Note 8) 1,152,610 1,100,768
Taxes receivable (Note 9) 493,403 338,851
Accounts receivable 536,222 208,792
Inventories held for resale 38,665 39,444
3,963,142 3,679,189
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 383,071 281,981
Deferred revenue-general (Note 10) 112,725 18,770
Deferred revenue-obligatory reserve funds (Note 11) 431,910 189,646
Employee benefits payable (Note 14) 13,412 12,221
Asset retirement obligations (Note 15) 585,878 257,446
1,526,996 760,064
NET FINANCIAL ASSETS 2,436,146 2,919,125
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Tangible capital assets - net (Note 19) 5,982,707 4,759,545
Inventories of supplies 62,383 45,332
Prepaid expenses 24,539 11,186
6,069,629 4,816,063
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (Note 20) 8,505,775 $ 7,735,188

Contingencies (Note 5, 17)
Contractual Obligations (Note 16)
Commitments (Note 18)

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF COUNCIL:

Reeve

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Budget Actual Actual
2024 2024 2023
(see Note 23)
REVENUE

Property taxes 2,200,540 $ 2,202,765 1,939,412

User charges 26,500 40,944 36,409

Government transfers 1,176,854 995,880 779,289

Restructuring net revenue (Note 22) - 12,120 -

Other 458,028 516,825 223,096
TOTAL REVENUE 3,861,922 3,768,534 2,978,206
EXPENSES

General government 614,771 601,853 604,652

Protection to persons and property 670,200 634,009 603,793

Transportation services 1,260,609 1,100,633 801,342

Environmental services 212,565 203,440 163,625

Health services 120,529 123,274 105,366

Social and family services 148,005 148,005 130,224

Recreation and cultural services 157,303 145,303 97,795

Planning and development 53,939 41,430 19,190
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,237,921 2,997,947 2,525,987
ANNUAL SURPLUS (Note 20) 624,001 770,587 452,219
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,735,188 7,735,188 7,282,969

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, END OF YEAR

$ 8,359,189

$ 8,505,775

$ 7,735,188

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Budget Actual Actual
2024 2024 2023
(see Note 23)

Annual surplus $ 624,001 % 770,587 $ 452,219
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (1,699,305) (1,335,035} (317,931)
Contributed tangible capital assets - net 2 (3,123} (5,000)
Revaluation of tangible capital assets - ARO - (321,657) (12,655)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 411,181 411,181 386,580
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets = 25,472 17,916
Proceeds from disposal of tangible capital assets - . 12,961
Change in supplies inventories - (17,051) 10,413
Change in prepaid expenses = (13,353) 2,847
Increase (decrease) in net financial assets (664,123) (482,979) 547,350
Net financial assets, beginning of year 2,919,125 2,919,125 2,371,775
Net financial assets, end of year $ 2,255,002 $ 2,436,146 $ 2,919,125

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
Operating transactions
Annual surplus 770,587 $ 452,219
Non-cash charges to operations:
Amortization of tangible capital assets 411,181 386,580
Contributed tangible capital assets - net (3,123) (5,000)
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 25,472 17,916
Accretion expense on ARO liability 6,775 10,272
Revaluation of tangible capital assets - ARO (321,657} (12,655)
Increase in ARO liability excluding accretion 321,657 12,655
Change in employee benefits payable 1,191 4,307
1,212,083 866,294
Changes in non-cash items:
Taxes receivable (154,552) (52,981)
Accounts receivable (327,430) (45,572)
Inventories held for resale 779 (21,853)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 101,090 (143,735)
Deferred revenue-general 93,955 (1,230)
Deferred revenue-obligatory reserve funds 242,264 (33,932)
Inventories of supplies (17,051) 10,413
Prepaid expenses (13,353) 2,847
(74,298) (286,043)
Cash provided by operating transactions 1,137,785 580,251
Capital transactions
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (1,335,035) (317,931)
Proceeds from disposal of tangible capital assets - 12,961
Cash applied to capital transactions (1,335,035) (304,970)
Investing transactions
Purchase of investments (51,842) (43,897)
Cash applied to investing transactions (51,842) (43,897)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (249,092) 231,384
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,991,334 1,759,950
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 1,742,242 $ 1,991,334

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

Management Responsibility

The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith (the
"Municipality") are the responsibility of management and have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles for local governments established by the Public Sector Accounting
Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. A summary of significant accounting policies is
provided in Note 1. The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on
management's judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be
finalized with certainty until future periods.

Management maintains a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that reliable financial
information is produced. The internal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with legislative and regulatory
requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the Municipality are as follows:

(a) Reporting Entity
These consolidated statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and

accumulated surplus balances of the reporting entity. The reporting entity is comprised
of all committees of Council and the boards, joint boards and municipal enterprises for
which Council is politically accountable as follows:

(i) Consolidated entities
The following local board is consolidated:
Cemetery

The following joint local committees is proportionally consolidated:
Economic Development

Inter-organizational transactions and balances between the Municipality and these
organizations are eliminated.

(ii) Non-consolidated entities
The following joint boards are not consolidated:
North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit
Parry Sound District Social Services Administration Board
District of Parry Sound (West) Home for the Aged

(iii) Accounting for school board transactions
The taxation, other revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities with respect to the
operations of the school boards are not reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

(iv) Trust funds
Trust funds administered by the Municipality are not included in these consolidated
financial statements, but are reported separately on the trust funds financial
statements.



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of Accounting

()

(i)

(iii)

Accrual basis of accounting

Revenue and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue from
transactions with performance obligations is recognized when (or as) the performance
obligation is satisfied by providing the promised goods or services to the payer.
Performance obligations are defined as enforceable promises to provide specific goods
or services to a specific payer. Revenue from transactions with no performance
obligations is recognized when the Municipality has the authority to claim or retain the
revenue and identifies a past transaction or event that gives rise to an asset. Expenses
are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods or
services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances with financial institutions and
short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less.

Non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities but are held for use
in the provision of municipal services. They have useful lives extending beyond the
current year and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

(a) Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes all amounts that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, development or betterment of
the asset, as well as any asset retirement obligation related to the asset. Tangible
capital assets received as donations are recorded at their fair value at the date of
receipt, and that fair value is also recorded as revenue. The cost, less residual
value, of the tangible capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Land improvements - 10 to 20 years

Buildings - 40 years

Machinery, equipment and furniture - 5 to 20 years
Vehicles - 6 to 20 years

Roads - 8 to 75 years

Bridges - 60 years

One half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the
year of disposal. Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is
available for productive use.

Estimated closure and post-closure expenses for active landfill sites as well as the
land occupied by the sites are amortized annually on the basis of capacity used
during the year as a percentage of the estimated total capacity of the landfill site.

Interest related to the acquisition of capital assets is not capitalized, but is expensed
in the year incurred.



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(b) Inventories of supplies
Inventories held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost and replacement

cost.

Deferred Revenue

Revenue restricted by legislation, regulation or agreement and not available for general
municipal purposes is reported as deferred revenue on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position. The revenue is reported on the Consolidated Statement of
Operations in the year in which it is used for the specified purpose.

Reserves and reserve funds

Certain amounts, as approved by Council, are set aside in reserves and reserve funds
for future operating and capital purposes. Balances related to these funds are included
in the accumulated surplus of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Government transfers

Government transfers are recognized as revenue when the transfer is authorized and
any eligibility criteria are met, except to the extent that transfer stipulations give rise to
an obligation that meets the definition of a liability. Transfers are recognized as
deferred revenue when transfer stipulations give rise to a liability. Transfer revenue is
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations as the stipulation liabilities are
settled.

Taxation and related revenue

Tax rates are established annually by Council, incorporating amounts to be raised for
local services and amounts the Municipality is required to collect on behalf of the
Province of Ontario in respect of education taxes. Property tax billings are prepared by
the Municipality based on assessment rolls, supplementary assessment rolls and other
assessment adjustments issued by the Municipal Property Assessment Corporation
("MPAC"). Taxation revenue is initially recorded at the time assessment information is
received from MPAC and is subsequently adjusted based on management's best
estimate of the amount of tax revenue resulting from assessment adjustments that
have not yet been received from MPAC. The Municipality is entitled to collect interest
and penalties on overdue taxes. This revenue is recorded in the period the interest and
penalties are levied.



10

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(viii)

(ix)

Pensions and employee benefits

The Municipality accounts for its participation in the Ontario Municipal Employee
Retirement System (OMERS), a multi-employer public sector pension fund, as a defined
contribution plan. Obligations for sick leave under employee benefits payable are
accrued as the employees render the services necessary to earn the benefits.

Financial instruments
Financial instruments are classified as either fair value, amortized cost or cost.

Financial instruments classified as fair value are initially recognized at cost and
subsequently carried at fair value. Financing fees and transaction costs on financial
instruments measured at fair value are expensed as incurred. Unrealized gains and
losses on financial assets are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of
Remeasurement Gains and Losses. Once realized, remeasurement gains and losses are
transferred to the Consolidated Statement of Operations. A Consolidated Statement of
Remeasurement Gains and Losses has not been included as there are no matters to
report thereon.

Financial instruments classified as amortized cost are initially recognized at cost and
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less any
impairment losses on financial assets. The effective interest rate method allocates
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period, based on the effective
interest rate. Transaction costs related to financial instruments in the amortized cost
category are added to the carrying value of the instrument.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are tested for impairment when there are
indicators of impairment. Previously recognized impairment losses are reversed to the
extent of the improvement, provided the asset is not carried at an amount, at the date
of the reversal, greater than the amount that would have been the carrying amount had
no impairment loss been recognized previously. The amounts of any write-downs or
reversals are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Financial liabilities (or part of a financial liability) are removed from the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position when, and only when, they are discharged, cancelled or

expire.

The Municipality's financial instruments are measured according to the following
methods:

Financial instrument Measurement method
Cash and cash equivalents Amortized cost
Investments Amortized cost
Accounts receivable Amortized cost

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Amortized cost



11

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

i

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(xi)

Asset retirement obligations

A liability for an asset retirement obligation is recognized when, at the financial
reporting date, all of the following criteria are met:

- there is a legal obligation to incur retirement costs in relation to a capital asset;

- the past transaction or event giving rise to the liability has occurred;

- it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and

- a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

The liability is recorded at an amount that is the best estimate of the expenditure
required to retire a capital asset at the financial statement date. The liability is
subsequently reviewed at each financial reporting date and adjusted for the passage of
time and for any revisions to the timing, amount required to settle the obligation or the
discount rate. When an asset retirement obligation is initially recognized, a
corresponding asset retirement cost is added to the carrying value of the related capital
asset when it is still in productive use. This cost is amortized over the useful life of the
capital asset. If the related capital asset is unrecognized or no longer in productive
use, the asset retirement costs are expensed.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the period. These estimates and assumptions are based
on management's historical experience, best knowledge of current events and actions
that the Municipality may undertake in the future. Significant accounting estimates
include valuation allowarces for taxes and accounts receivable, estimated useful lives of
tangible capital assets, employee benefits payable, estimated costs and timing of asset
retirement obligations and supplementary taxes. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

There is a measurement uncertainty surrounding the estimation of liabilities for asset
retirement obligations of $585,878. These estimates are subject to uncertainty
because of several factors including, but not limited to estimated settlement dates,
estimated costs and change in the discount rate. These estimates are reviewed
annually and, as adjustments become necessary, they are recorded in the period in
which they become known.



12
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

4, CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES - ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

On January 1, 2024, the Municipality adopted Public Sector Accounting Standard PS 3400 - Revenue.
New Section PS 3400 establishes standards on how to account for and report on revenue. It does not
apply to revenues for which specific standards already exist, such as government transfers, tax revenue
or restricted revenues. The Section distinguishes between revenue that arises from transactions that
include performance obligations (i.e., exchange transactions) and transactions that do not have
performance obligations (i.e., non-exchange transactions). The Municipality has adopted this new
standard prospectively. The adoption of this new standard had no impact on the opening balances.

On January 1, 2024, the Municipality adopted new Public Sector Guideline PSG-8 - Purchased
Intangibles. The main features of PSG-8 include a definition of purchased intangibles (which does not
include those received through government transfer, contribution or inter-entity transactions),
examples of items that are not purchased intangibles, reference to other guidance in the Handbook on
intangibles and reference to the asset definition, general recognition criteria and the GAAP hierarchy for
accounting for purchased intangibles. The Municipality has adopted this new guideline prospectively.
The adoption of this new guideline had no impact on the Municipality's consolidated financial
statements.

On January 1, 2024, the Municipality adopted Public Sector Accounting Standard PS 3160 - Public
Private Partnerships. New Section PS 3160 establishes standards on how to account for partnerships
between public and private sector entities where infrastructure is procured by a public sector entity
using a private sector partner that is obligated to design, build, acquire or better infrastructure; finance
the infrastructure past the point where the infrastructure is ready for use and operate and/or maintain
the infrastructure. Infrastructure typically includes items such as tangible capital assets (i.e., complex
network systems), but may also include items that are intangible in nature. The Municipality has
adopted this new standard prospectively.  The adoption of this new standard had no impact on the
Municipality's consolidated financial statements.

5. CONTRIBUTIONS TO UNCONSOLIDATED JOINT BOARDS

Further to Note 3(a)(ii), the following contributions were made by the Municipality to these boards:

2024 2023

District of Parry Sound Social Services Administration Board $ 108,777 % 103,304
North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit 26,259 25,494
District of Parry Sound (West) Home for the Aged 39,228 26,920
$ 174,264 $ 155,718

The Municipality is contingently liable for its share, if any, of the accumulated deficits as at the end of
the year for these boards. The Municipality's share of the accumulated surpluses (or deficits) of these
boards has not been determined at this time.

The Municipality is also contingently liable for its share, if any, of the long-term liabilities issued by
other municipalities for these boards. The Municipality's share of these long-term liabilities has not been

determined at this time.



13

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

6. TRANSACTIONS ON BEHALF OF OTHERS

(a) During the year, $395,228 of taxation was collected on behalf of school boards (2023 - $380,474).

(b) Trust funds administered by the Municipality totaling $232,857 (2023 - $203,037) are not included
in these consolidated financial statements, as they are being held in trust for the benefit of others.

Trusts under administration include:

(1)

(i)

Dr. Richardson
This trust fund was established in 1927 for the purposes of providing educational

bursaries to local Grade 8 graduates. These endowment funds are invested and
earnings derived therefrom are used towards the bursaries. The balance of the trust is

$216,780 (2023 - $188,005).

Care and Maintenance
This trust fund is funded by the sale of cemetery interment rights and markers. These

funds are invested and earnings derived therefrom are used to perform maintenance at
the Municipality's cemeteries. The balance of the trust is $16,077 (2023 - $15,032).

7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash is comprised of:

2024 2023
Unrestricted cash $ 1,310,332 ¢ 1,801,688
Restricted cash 431,910 189,646

$ 1,742,242 $ 1,991,334

Federal and Municipal legislation restricts how restricted cash related to obligatory reserve funds,
reported in Note 11, may be used.

8. INVESTMENTS

Investments are comprised of guaranteed investment certificates, bearing interest at rates ranging from
2.50% to 4.20% and maturing between August 22, 2025 and December 9, 2025.



14

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2024

;

10.

TAXES RECEIVABLE

Taxes receivable are comprised of the following:

2024 2023

Taxes and amounts added for collection purposes-current year 298,701 §% 221,599
Penalties and interest-current year 18,218 12,764
Taxes and amounts added for collection purposes-previous year 89,442 49,881
Penalties and interest-previous year 18,438 10,102
Taxes and amounts added for collection purposes-prior years 48,313 33,303
Penalties and interest-prior years 24,291 15,202
Valuation allowance (4,000) (4,000)
493,403 $ 338,851

DEFERRED REVENUE-GENERAL

Details of the deferred revenue reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position are as

follows:
2024 2023
Balance, beginning of year:
Ontario Cannabis Legalization Implementation Fund 18,770 20,000
' 18,770 20,000
Deferred as a result of the adoption of PS 3400:
Current year receipts 73,316 -
Prior-year receipts 23,181 -
96,497 -
Recognized in revenue during the year (2,542) (1,230)
Balance, end of year 112,725 18,770
Balance, end of year
Ontario Cannabis Legalization Implementation Fund 16,229 18,770
Building permits 93,536 =
Entrance permits 1,350 -
Planning fees 1,610 -
Balance, end of year 112,725 18,770




15

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

11.

DEFERRED REVENUE-OBLIGATORY RESERVE FUNDS

The Municipality receives payments in lieu of parkland under the Planning Act, federal
Community-Building funding (previously gas tax) under an agreement with the Association of
Municipalities of Ontario and Ontario Community Infrastructure Fund funding under an agreement with
the Ministry of Infrastructure. Legislation restricts how these funds may be used, and under certain
circumstances, how these funds may be refunded.

In the case of payments in lieu of parkland, revenue recognition occurs when the Municipality has
approved eligible expenditures for park and other public recreation purposes. Community-Building and
Ontario Community Infrastructure Fund revenue recognition occurs when the Municipality has approved
the expenditures for eligible operating expenditures and capital works.

Details of the deferred revenue-obligatory reserve funds reported on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position are as follows:

2024 2023
Balance, beginning of year:
Recreational land (the Planning Act) $ 54,601 §$ 48,181
Community-Building 135,045 75,289
Ontario Community Infrastructure Fund - 100,108
189,646 223,578
Received during the year:
Recreational land (the Planning Act) 17,249 4,543
Community-Building 57,846 54,539
Ontario Community Infrastructure Fund 200,000 =
Interest earned 18,113 10,525
293,208 69,607
Recognized in revenue during the year (50,944) (103,539)
Balance, end of year $ 431,910 $ 189,646
Recreational land (the Planning Act) $ 69,594 $ 54,601
Community-Building 200,470 135,045
Ontario Community Infrastructure Fund 161,846 =

Balance, end of year $ 431,910 $ 189,646




16

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

12,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risks arising from financial instruments and risk management

The Municipality is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments. The Municipality's overall
risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
the potential adverse effects on the Municipality's financial performance.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Municipality if a debtor fails to honour its contractual
obligations. The Municipality is exposed to this risk as a result of its cash and cash equivalents,
investments and accounts receivable. The carrying amounts of these financial assets on the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position represent the maximum credit risk of the Municipality as at
the reporting date.

The Municipality holds its cash and investments with a federally regulated chartered bank and a
provincially regulated credit union who are insured, respectively, by the Canadian Deposit Insurance
Corporation ("CDIC") and the Financial Services Regulatory Authority of Ontario (FSRA). The CDIC
insurance is up to $100,000 per deposit account and the FSRA insurance is up to $250,000 in
aggregate.

Accounts receivable are primarily due from other levels of government and municipal ratepayers.
Credit risk is mitigated by the financial solvency of the governments, the highly diversified nature of the
ratepayer population and the potential for the Municipality to transfer unpaid ratepayer receivables to
taxes receivable. The amounts outstanding at year-end were as follows:

2024
Current Past Due Indeterminate TOTAL
Due Date
Federal $ 274,084 - $ - $ 274,084
Provincial 139,578 865 - 140,443
Other municipalities - - 6,949 6,949
Ratepayers - planning-related - - 81,429 81,429
Other 597 32,720 i 33,317
Net receivables $ 414,259 $ 33,585 $ 88,378 $ 536,222
2023
Current Past Due Indeterminate TOTAL
Due Date
Federal $ 69,602 % - $ 13,260 $ 82,862
Provincial 17,010 - 23,602 40,612
Ratepayers - planning-related = - 63,385 63,385
Other 21,933 - # 21,933
Net receivables $ 108,545 $ - $ 100,247 $ 208,792

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in exposure to credit risk or policies,
procedures and methods used to measure the risk.



17

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

13.

14,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Municipality will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
become due. The Municipality is exposed to this risk with respect to its accounts payable and accrued
liabilities. The Municipality maintains sufficient cash balances to meet its obligations, and does not

believe it is subject to significant liquidity risk.

Planning-related accounts are settled when the related planning application has been finalized and as
such, the payable date is indeterminate. The following table sets out the payable dates of the
Municipality's financial liabilities:

2024
Within 6 6 months to 1to 5 years Indeterminate TOTAL
manths 1 year payable date
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 261,794 $ 44,793 $ - $ 76,484 % 383,071
2023
Within 6 6 months to 1to 5 years Indeterminate TOTAL
months 1 year payable date
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 173,526 $ 36,320 $ = $ 72,135 $ 281,981

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in exposure to liquidity risk or policies,
procedures and methods used to measure the risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of market factors. Market factors include three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity risk. The Municipality is not exposed to significant currency or equity risk as it does not
transact materially in foreign currency or hold equity financial instruments. It is primarily exposed to
interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Municipality is exposed to interest rate risk
on its interest-bearing investments. Fixed-rate instruments subject the Municipality to a fair value risk.

There have been no significant changes from the prior year in the exposure to market risk or policies,
procedures and methods used to measure the risk.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PAYABLE

Under the sick leave benefits plan, sick leave can accumulate at a rate of 6 days per year to a
maximum of 30 days. There is no vesting of sick days. The sick leave benefit liability estimates the
use of accumulated sick leave prior to retirement, and assumes that both the appropriate discount rate
and future salary and wage levels will increase by 2% per annum. The liability for these accumulated
days amounted to $13,412 (2023 - $12,221) at the end of the year.




18

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

15.

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

The Municipality has recorded an asset retirement obligation with respect to its landfill closure and
post-closure care requirements, which have been defined in accordance with industry standards and
include final cover and landscaping of the landfill site, management of groundwater and leachates, and
ongoing environmental monitoring and site inspection.

When initially recording this obligation, the estimated present value of future cash flows for closure and
post-closure costs for active landfill sites are capitalized to the carrying amount of the associated
assets, and amortized over the operating life of the site, in proportion to its utilized capacity.
Subsequently, accretion of the discounted liability due to the passage of time is recorded as an in-year
expense. Any revisions to the estimated cost of the obligation arising from a change in cost, timing,
inflation or discount rate are capitalized and amortized as part of the asset.

The liability for the landfill site represents the total discounted future cash flows for closure and
post-closure care using an estimated long-term borrowing rate of 3.92% (2023 - 4.14%) and inflation
rate of 2.6% (2023 - 2.6%). The continuity of the asset retirement obligation is shown below:

2024 2023
Balance, beginning of year $ 257,446 S 234,519
Increase in liability reflecting changes in the
estimated cash flows, inflation and discount rate 321,657 12,655
Increase in liability due to accretion (the passage of time) 6,775 10,272
Balance, end of year $ 585,878 $ 257,446

The estimated remaining capacity of the site is 10,000 cubic metres (2023 - 50 cubic metres),
estimated to be filled in 10 years (2023 - 1 year). Post-closure care is estimated to be required for a
period of 25 years.

The Municipality has reserves of $302,057 (2023 - $302,056) to fund this obligation.



19

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

16.

17.

18.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

In 2024, the Municipality entered into a contract with Mark Lane Construction for the renovation of the
municipal office at a cost of $395,412. In 2024, $246,700 of work was completed. The balance of the
work is expected to be completed in 2025.

In addition, in 2024 the Municipality contracted GTB Contacting Inc. to provide and install playground
equipment at a cost of $51,887. To the end of 2024, $34,153 of this contract was completed. The
balance of the contract is expected to be completed in 2025.

CONTINGENCIES

The Municipality is involved from time to time in litigation, which arises in the normal course of
business. With respect to outstanding claims, the Municipality believes that insurance coverage is
adequate and that no material exposure exists on the eventual settlement of such litigation.
Therefore, no provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements.

COMMITMENTS

The Municipality has agreed to put aside monies over the next 12 years, to a maximum of $639,000, for
their share of the cost of building two new hospitals, one in Bracebridge and one in Huntsville and to
put aside monies over the next 12 years, to a maximum of $159,750, to improve health services in the
Almaguin Highlands providing the project goes forward.



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

20

19. TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

The tangible capital assets of the Municipality by major asset class are outlined below.

2024
Land Buildings Machinery Vehicles Roads Assets TOTAL
and Land and and Under
Improvements Equipment Bridges Construction
COsT
Balance, beginning of year $ 401,563 $ 1,427,231 $ 516,393 $ 1,858,882 ¢ 8,579,767 $ 16,575 § 12,800,411
Additions and betterments 347,380 1,982 54,752 642,017 288,740 321,821 1,656,692
Contributed assets 4,494 - - - M - 4,494
Disposals and writedowns # (15,365) (7,779) (12,249) (91,742) (16,575) (143,710)
BALANCE, END OF YEAR 753,437 1,413,848 563,366 2,488,650 8,776,765 321,821 14,317,887
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Balance, beginning of year 139,087 657,430 218,430 1,080,600 5,945,319 = 8,040,866
Annual amortization 16,105 34,308 31,878 114,184 214,706 . 411,181
Accumulated amortization -
contributed assets 1,371 g - - _ = 1,371
Amortization disposals - (7,476) (7,779) (12,249) (90,734) 4 (118,238)
BALANCE, END OF YEAR 156,563 684,262 242,529 1,182,535 6,069,291 0 8,335,180
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS-NET ¢ 596,874 $ 729,586 % 320,837 ¢ 1,306,115 $ 2,707,474 & 321,821 $ 5,982,707
2023
Land Buildings Machinery Vehicles Roads Assets TOTAL
and Land and and Under
Improvements Equipment Bridges Construction
COST
Balance, beginning of year $ 415,919 $ 1,439,231 § 511,393 § 1,891,889 $ 8,426,188 $ 26,178 ¢ 12,710,798
Additions and betterments 12,655 - - 4,500 313,431 - 330,586
Contributed assets - . 5,000 - - - 5,000
Disposals and writedowns (27,011) (12,000) - (37,507) (159,852) (9,603) (245,973)
BALANCE, END OF YEAR 401,563 1,427,231 516,393 1,858,882 8,579,767 16,575 12,800,411
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Balance, beginning of year 145,684 634,954 189,198 1,012,906 5,886,640 - 7,869,382
Annual amortization 12,828 34,476 29,232 105,201 204,843 2 386,580
Amortization disposals (19,425) (12,000) - (37,507) (146,164) - {215,096)
BALANCE, END OF YEAR 139,087 657,430 218,430 1,080,600 5,945,319 = 8,040,866
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS-NET ¢ 262,476 $ 769,801 $ 297,963 % 778,282 $ 2,634,448 $ 16,575 % 4,759,545




21

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2024

20. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

The 2024 continuity of accumulated surplus reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial

Position is as follows:

Balance Annual Balance
Beginning Surplus End of Year
of Year (Deficit)
RESERVES AND RESERVE FUNDS
Working funds 315,566 - 315,566
Election 3,000 3,000 6,000
Buildings 663,600 - 663,600
Fire 436,838 (392,000) 44,838
Roads 491,057 - 491,057
Roads equipment 210,213 100,000 310,213
Landfill 302,056 1 302,057
Home for the Aged 16,130 (16,130) -
Muskoka Algonquin Health Centre 66,563 66,562 133,125
Recreation 11,033 a 11,033
Modernization fund 352,233 (6,628) 345,605
2,868,289 (245,195) 2,623,094
OTHER
Consolidated tangible capital assets 4,759,545 1,223,162 5,982,707
General operating surplus -
Municipality 362,988 113,592 476,580
Cemetery 14,033 3,260 17,293
ACED - 5,391 5,391
Unfunded amounts -
Employee benefits payable (12,221) (1,191) (13,412)
Asset retirement obligations (257,446) (328,432) (585,878)
7,735,188 $ 770,587 $ 8,505,775




22

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

21.

SEGMENT DISCLOSURES AND EXPENSES BY OBJECT

The Municipality and its Boards and Committees provide a wide range of services to its citizens. The
schedule of segment disclosure provides a breakdown of the annual surplus (deficit) reported on the
Consolidated Statement of Operations by major reporting segment. The segments correspond to the
major functional categories used in the Municipality's Financial Information Return, which include the
following activities:

General Government

This segment includes Council, Clerk's Department, and Treasury. This area supports the operating
departments in implementing priorities of Council and provides strategic leadership on issues relating to
governance, strategic planning and service delivery.

Protection to Persons and Property
This segment includes fire, police, building inspection, and bylaw enforcement. Police services are
provided by the Ontario Provincial Police under contract.

Transportation Services
Transportation services include roadway systems and winter control.

Environmental Services
This segment includes solid waste management.

Health Services
This segment includes cemeteries, ambulance services as well as payments to the district health unit.

Social and Family Services

This segment consists primarily of payments made to the district social services administration board
and home for the aged for the provision of social services such as childcare, social housing, general
assistance and assistance to the elderly.

Recreation and Culture
This segment includes parks, recreation programs, recreation facilities and library services.

Planning and Development
This segment includes activities related to planning, zoning and economic development.

Unallocated Amounts

Items are recorded as unallocated amounts when there is no reasonable basis for allocating them to a
segment. Major items included in this category are property taxation and related penalty and interest
charges, and unconditional grants such as the Municipality's annual Ontario Municipal Partnership Fund
grant.



£8S'04L  $ TLS'622'E $ (652°6) S (0Z2'€) & (500°861) § (5T0OTI) & (0Z€'61T) $ (£08'E88) S (20t 24G) $ (956/085) & (1I12143a) SN1ddNS TWNNNY
V6 L66'T - 0EY v £0E'SPT S00°8%1 v/TECT 0¥F'£0Z £€9°00T'T 6000€9 £58'109 S3ISNIJXT WV.LOL
227’9 - - - - - SZZ°9 B - - AIGBII OYY JO UoRaIdoy
I8T'TTY - ras 08P'cT - = 1S€'6T 9bE'tIE P0T'8Y 889°'S uonezjowy
- - B - - - - - 00T'9g (o01'92) sjuswisn(pe |euoidunIUl
EPP'8LT = - - S00'8vT 652°9¢ = z - 641t SJajsuel) |eulalxg
10002 - - 6819 - = - s8/'s - £T0'0T sasuadxe |eppueuly pue sjuay
S60°08Z - 0Z8'#T £L0'% - 62716 #18'SS €95°c SHT1'90% 1St't02 S8DIAIBS palde.djuod
£50'249 - voz'e 919’9t - 602’ Z80°'sT T6v'Eby 2558’8/ EpR'EL s|eraiely
S6£°6T6 - PET'PT S6’'t9 - LLE'E 87996 8rb'see 800'S, 59/'62¢€ sijauag pue sabem ‘saueles
S3ISNIdX3
PES'BYL'E  T/S'6CC'E  T1Z1°2% £€80'z/ - 092°¢ 0Z1'v8 0£87917 20919 /68'99 INNIATY TVLOL
L6T'TPS 906’65 S6t 26E'pE - 09zZ'2 6LLT T19°¢ $S8ES - 12U30
(22v'sT) - 2 i e . - (800'T) (b+6'T) (0zs'ze) s1esse |ended Jo |esodsip uo $s07
ozZ1'zt - 02121 - - - - - - - anuaAad 3au Bulinioniissy
L6Y'T - - - - - - - L6P'T - saijedpiunw a0
259816 006985 sey 169°/¢€ n “ 620'29 206'£0T 0z0'sL §89°91 |elduiA0lg
1€L'S¢e = 166’8 - - - 2 - - 04’99 |edapad
- S19JSUB.] JUBWUIDADD
P60t - ot1'0T - - 7 zZIe’61 sze'9 SLT'T Z66°E sabieys 1asn
S§94'702' $ 59/4'70Z'T $ = $ : $ - $ - $ = $ - $ - - $ saxe} Apadold
INNIATY
JuawdoEaag  $82IAJRS BINYIND Sa0IAIDS Ajladold
sjunowy pue pue Apwey SIDIAIDG EEBIRVELN s32IAl8G PuUR suosiad JUIWLIBA0D
p33iep|osuo) pa1es0jieun buiuue|d uoneaLIsy pue |enos yyjeay |[ejusWwuodinug  uoneyodsuel)] 03 uonDa10.d |ejauas

¥20¢ "T€ ¥39IW3ID3A A3ANT Yv3A IHL ¥O4

(panuinuo)) TDICG0 A SISNIAXI ANV SIFNSOTOSIA INIWOIS

“TZ

€¢

£20¢ ‘T€ 19qWiadaQ papug Jess

SLINIWILVYLS TVIONVYNI4 d31VAITOSNOD 3HL OL SILON
HLIFINOW/HIOITHANWOW 40 dIHSNMOL FHL 40 NOILVHOd¥0D JHL



612’25t  $ 6Z1'629°C % (06Z'ST) & (918'64) $ (bZ20£T) $ (921°96) & (921°59) $ ($+61°'189) $ (282 vcS) $ (208 v85) $ (112143A) sN1dYNS IVNNNY

£86'S¢S5°C - 061°6T S6/4°'46 #2Z'0€T 99£°90T §79'€9T Z+E’108 £6.'€09 259'+09 S3ISNIdX3 IVLOL
2LZ'01 = = = - ~ ¢L2'ot - - - AjllIgel| OYY JO Uoiaiooy
085°98¢ = - 99Z’ce = = LBZ'9T 0s2'60¢€ 890°Z¢ 6/49°S uonezjowy
9r6'T9T - - = ¥ZZ'0€T vet’'se S = = 8zzZ’'9 SJ9jsuel} [eudaix3
$86'HT - - T€9'g - - - 8 - Sye’s SasuURdX2 |eIDURUY pue SUDY
755899 - 06T'61 8TE'y - 8Z0'8L £88'85 S6T'0T £0+'09¢€ SES'/ET SIJIAIDS PIIdRAU0D
#€5’00S - - €e9'eg z 155 679'CT 060°/22 162'cs 0ze’'esT s|ela3e
6IT'E8/ - - LP6'0E - €62'T 25’59 644952 TE0'8ET SPST6T Sjyauaqg pue sabem ‘saieles
S3ISN3dX3
902'8/6'C  671'629'¢ 00b'¢ 6L6°LT - 061°6 66166 8v1'02T 1106/ 058°61 ANN3AIY TVLOL
210 1¥T L1S°(6 = 955'8¢7 = 06T°6 T16°L 904'6€ ZET'8S - 2410
(o16'2T) = = (991'¢1) - = - (889°¢c1) 8£6'8 - s19sse
|eyded jo |esodsip uo (sso|) uien
790°¢ e - = - - = - z90'e - sanledpiunw Jawpo
£22°94¢ 00zZ'Z6S - 685’2 - = 0zZ0'69 S0T1'SS 648’8 PEF'ST |_I2UIA0Lg
60%'9¢€ - 00%'E - - - 895’z SzZ0‘9 - 9Ip'p sabieyd Jasn
TIV'6E6'T $ ZIP'BEE'T & > $ - $ = $ . $ - $ = $ = $ - $ soxe} Ajadoug
INNIATY
awdopasg  sad1AIRg |RINNY S92IAIDG Apadoig
sjunowy pue pue Ajlweg S82IAIBS S30IAIBS S3VIAIBS puUB suosiad JUBWIUIBA0D
paiepijosuo) paledojjeun Buiuuelyg uoniealnay pue |eos YijeaH |BluaWUOLIAUg uonepodsued) 03 U0I32330.d |edauag)

€202 'T€ ¥38W3ID3A dIANT ¥V3A IHL W04

(penunuon) T53(90 A9 SISNIAXT ANV S3ANSOTOSIA LINTFWDIS ‘1¢

20T 'T€ J9qWiadag papug Jea,
SINIWILVYLS TVIDNVYNI4 dILVAITOSNOD JHL Ol S310ON

HLISINOW/HOTHYNWOW 40 dIHSNMOL JHL 40 NOILVYOdYd0D IHL
144



25

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

22,

23.

24.

25.

RESTRUCTURING NET REVENUE

In July 2024, the Municipality became a member of Almaguin Community Economic Development
("ACED"), and assumed a proportionate share of ACED's assets, liabilities and surplus. The Municipality
recorded net revenue of $12,120 as a result of this restructuring. The value of the tangible capital
assets received is recorded as a contributed asset in Note 19.

BUDGET FIGURES

The budget adopted for the current year was prepared on a modified accrual basis, and has been
restated to conform with the accounting and reporting standards applicable to the actual results. For
unbudgeted items (amortization and asset retirement obligation accretion), the actual amounts for 2024
were used to adjust the reported budget amounts. A reconciliation of the adopted and reported
budgets is presented below.

Budget
ADOPTED BUDGET:
Decrease in general municipal operating surplus $ (362,988)
Decrease in municipal reserves and reserve funds (294,360)
ADJUSTMENTS:
Acquisition of tangible capital assets 1,699,305
Amortization of tangible capital assets (411,181)
Asset retirement obligation accretion (6,775)
ANNUAL SURPLUS $ 624,001

PENSION AGREEMENTS

The Municipality makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employee Retirement Fund (OMERS),
which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of certain members of its staff. The plan is a defined benefit
plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based on the
length of service and rates of pay. Each year an independent actuary determines the funding status of
OMERS Primary Pension Plan (the Plan) by comparing the actuarial value of invested assets to the
estimated present value of all pension benefits that members have earned to date. The most recent
actuarial valuation of the Plan was conducted at December 31, 2024. The results of this valuation
disclosed total actuarial liabilities of $142,489 million with respect to benefits accrued for service with
actuarial net assets at that date of $139,576 million indicating an actuarial deficit of $2,913 million,
Because OMERS is a multi-employer plan, any Plan surpluses or deficits are a joint responsibility of
Ontario municipal organizations and their employees. As a result, the Municipality does not recognize
any share of the Plan surplus or deficit.

Contributions made by the Municipality to OMERS for 2024 were $55,411 (2023 - $46,174) for current
service. These contributions are included as an expense on the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain prior year figures presented for comparative purposes have been reclassified to conform to the
presentation adopted for the current year.



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF
MCMURRICH/MONTEITH TRUST FUNDS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2024




THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH TRUST FUNDS

CONTENTS
Page
Independent Auditor's Report 1-2
Statement of Financial Position 3
Statements of Operations and Accumulated Surplus 4
Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets 5
Statement of Cash Flows 6

Notes to the Financial Statements 7-10



Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of The Corporation of the Township of
McMurrich/Monteith

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Corporation of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith
Trust Funds (“the Trust Funds") which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31,
2024, and the statements of operations and accumulated surplus, change in net financial assets and
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of The Corporation of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith Trust Funds as at December 31,
2024, and its results of operations, its change in its net financial assets, and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit-in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust Funds in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Trust Funds’ ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to a going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Trust Funds
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust Funds’ financial reporting
process.



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue and auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the auditin order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Trust Funds' internal control,

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust Funds’ ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust Funds to
cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

North Bay, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH TRUST FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

Dr. Richardson Care and Total 2024 Total 2023
Maintenance

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 53,173 % 3,068 % 56,241 % 33,611

Investments (Note 3) 165,407 13,297 178,704 171,443
Total Financial Assets 218,580 16,365 234,945 205,054
Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities 1,800 288 2,088 2,017

Net Financial Assets and Accumulated
Surplus $ 216,780 $ 16,077 $ 232,857 $ 203,037

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF COUNCIL:

Reeve

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH TRUST FUNDS
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Dr. Richardson Care and Total 2024 Total 2023
Maintenance

Revenue

Interest earned $ 28,975 $ - $ 28,975 §$ 25,248
Capital receipts & 1,045 1,045 250
28,975 1,045 30,020 25,498

Expenses
Bursaries 200 - 200 1,600
Annual Surplus 28,775 1,045 29,820 23,898
Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year 188,005 15,032 203,037 179,139
Accumulated Surplus, end of year $ 216,780 $ 16,077 $ 232,857 $ 203,037

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH TRUST FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
Annual surplus and increase in net financial assets $ 29,820 $ 23,898
Net financial assets, beginning of year 203,037 179,139
Net financial assets, end of year $ 232,857 $ 203,037

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH TRUST FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
Operating transactions
Annual surplus $ 29,820 $ 23,898
Changes in non-cash items:
Accounts receivable - 478
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 71 1,017
Cash provided by operating transactions 29,891 25,393
Investing transactions
Purchase of investments (7,261) (5,562)
Cash applied to investing transactions (7,261) (5,562)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 22,630 19,831
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 33,611 13,780
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 56,241 $ 33,611

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH TRUST FUNDS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Management Responsibility

The financial statements of the trust funds of the Corporation of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith (the
"Township") are the responsibility of management and have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles for local governments established by the Public Sector Accounting
Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. A summary of significant accounting policies is
provided in Note 1. The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on
management’s judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be
finalized with certainty until future periods.

Management maintains a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that reliable financial
information is produced. The internal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with legislative and regulatory
requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for preparation of the financial
statements.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the Township are as follows:

(i) Reporting entity
The financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the

Township's trust funds. The Township's assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses are
reported separately in the Township's consolidated financial statements.

(ii) Basis of accounting
Sources of financing and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenue is recognized in the year in which it is earned and measurable. Expenses are
recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods or
services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include balances held at financial institutions and short-term
deposits with original maturities of three months or less.

(iv) Investments
Investments are recorded at cost plus accrued interest.

(v) Revenue recognition
Capital receipts are recognized when received. Interest is recognized when earned.




THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH TRUST FUNDS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Financial instruments
Financial instruments are classified as either fair value, amortized cost or cost.

Financial instruments classified as fair value are initially recognized at cost and
subsequently carried at fair value. Financing fees and transaction costs on financial
instruments measured at fair value are expensed as incurred. Once realized,
remeasurement gains and losses are transferred to the Statement of Operations. A
Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses has not been included as there are no
matters to report thereon.

Financial instruments classified as amortized cost are initially recognized at cost and
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less any
impairment losses on financial assets. The effective interest rate method allocates
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period, based on the effective
interest rate. Transaction costs related to financial instruments in the amortized cost
category are added to the carrying value of the instrument.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are tested for impairment when there are
indicators of impairment. Previously recognized impairment losses are reversed to the
extent of the improvement, provided the asset is not carried at an amount, at the date
of the reversal, greater-than the amount that would have been the carrying amount had
no impairment loss been recognized previously. The amounts of any write-downs or
reversals are recognized in the Statement of Operations.

Financial liabilities (or part of a financial liability) are removed from the Statement of
Financial Position when, and only when, they are discharged, cancelled or expire.

The Township's financial instruments are measured according to the following methods:

Financial instrument Measurement method
Cash and cash equivalents Amortized cost
Investments Amortized cost
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Amortized cost

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from

these estimates.




THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH TRUST FUNDS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES - ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

On January 1, 2024, the Township adopted Public Sector Accounting Standard PS 3400 - Revenue.
New Section PS 3400 establishes standards on how to account for and report on revenue. It does not
apply to revenues for which specific standards already exist, such as government transfers or restricted
revenues. The Section distinguishes between revenue that arises from transactions that include
performance obligations (i.e., exchange transactions) and transactions that do not have performance
obligations (i.e., non-exchange transactions). The Township has adopted this new standard
prospectively, The adoption of this new standard had no impact on these financial statements.

On January 1, 2024, the Township adopted new Public Sector Guideline PSG-8 - Purchased Intangibles.
The main features of PSG-8 include a definition of purchased intangibles (which does not include those
received through government transfer, contribution or inter-entity transactions), examples of items that
are not purchased intangibles, reference to other guidance in the Handbook on intangibles and
reference to the asset definition, general recognition criteria and the GAAP hierarchy for accounting for
purchased intangibles. The Township has adopted this new guideline prospectively. The adoption of
this new guideline had no impact on these financial statements.

On January 1, 2024, the Township adopted Public Sector Accounting Standard PS 3160 - Public Private
Partnerships. New Section PS 3160 establishes standards on how to account for partnerships between
public and private sector entities where infrastructure is procured by a public sector entity using a
private sector partner that is obligated to design, build, acquire or better infrastructure; finance the
infrastructure past the point where the infrastructure is ready for use and operate and/or maintain the
infrastructure. Infrastructure typically includes items such as tangible capital assets (i.e., complex
network systems), but may also include items that are intangible in nature. The Township has adopted
this new standard prospectively. The adoption of this new standard had no impact on these financial
statements.

3. INVESTMENTS

Investments are comprised of guaranteed investment certificates, bearing interest at rates ranging from
2.5% to 4.2% and maturing between August 18, 2025 and December 9, 2025.



10
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH TRUST FUNDS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risks arising from financial instruments and risk management

The Township is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments. There have been no
changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or policies, procedures and methods used to
measure the risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Township if a debtor fails to honour its contractual
obligations. The Township is exposed to this risk as a result of its cash and cash equivalents and
investments. The carrying amounts of these financial assets on the Statement of Financial Position
represent the maximum credit risk of the Township as at the reporting date. The Township does not
believe it is subject to significant credit risk,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Township will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
become due. The Township is exposed to this risk with respect to its accounts payable and accrued
liabilities. The Township maintains sufficient cash balances to meet its obligations, and does not

believe it is subject to significant liquidity risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of market factors. Market factors include three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity risk. The Township does not believe it is exposed to significant market risk.

5. CARE AND MAINTENANCE FUND

The care and maintenance fund administered by the Township is funded by the sale of cemetery
interment rights and markers. These funds are invested and earnings derived therefrom are used to
perform maintenance at the Township's cemeteries. The operations and investments of the fund are
undertaken by the Township in accordance with the regulations of the Funeral, Burial and Cremation
Services Act, 2002.

6. DR. RICHARDSON FUND

The Dr. Richardson trust fund was established in 1927 for the purposes of providing educational
bursaries to local Grade 8 graduates. These endowment funds are invested and earnings derived
therefrom are used towards the bursaries.



Administration Report to Council
August 19, 2025
Item 5.2

Fees and Charges Bylaw Review:

Notice will be posted regarding the proposed changes to the Fees and charges schedules of Bylaw
15-2022. The revised bylaw schedules will be added to the August 19t Council meeting agenda.
**Staff has requested postponement of the discussion on fee changes to the September g

Council meeting.

Housekeeping Zoning Bylaw Amendments:
The Public meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, September 16'". The required notice of the meeting
will be mailed according to the regulations and posted on the municipal website when prepared.

Pagelof1



p% \O 2095
4.1
NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR CONSENT
pursuant to Ontario Regulation No. 197/96, as amended

TAKE NOTICE that the Southeast Parry Sound District Planning Board will be considering
applications for consent under Section 53 of the Planning Act (File No. B-035/25, B-036/25 &

B-037/25).

THE PURPOSE AND EFFECT of the proposed consents is to create three new lots for
residential purposes.

THE SUBJECT LANDS ARE LOCATED in Part Lot 16, Concession 12 within the Township of
McMurrich/Monteith (McMurrich), as shown on the attached map(s). Severed 1 will have an
approximate frontage of 31 m. (101.7 ft.) on Little Falls Road, an approximate depth of 86.3 m.
(283.14 ft.), an approximate area of .25 ha. (.62 ac.) and is presently vacant. Severed 2 will have
an approximate frontage of 33.8 m. (110.89 ft.) on Little Falls Road, an approximate depth of
86.3 m. (283.14 ft.), an approximate area of .25 ha. (.62 ac.) and is presently vacant. Severed 3
will have an approximate frontage of 89.9 m. (294.95 ft.) on Little Falls Road, an approximate
depth of 51.5 m. (168.96 ft.), an approximate area of .25 ha. (.62 ac.) and has a garage located
on it. The parcel to be retained will have an approximate frontage of 124.9 m. (409.78 ft.) on
Little Falls Road, an approximate depth of 269 m. (882.55 ft.), an approximate area of 7.6 ha.
(18.78 ac.) and has a cabin and shed located on it.

If a person or public body has the ability to appeal the decision of Southeast Parry Sound
District Planning Board in respect of the proposed consent to the Ontario Land Tribunal
but does not make written submissions to Southeast Parry Sound District Planning Board
before it gives or refuses to give a provisional consent, the Tribunal may dismiss the
appeal.

IF YOU WISH TO BE NOTIFIED OF THE DECISION OF THE SOUTHEAST PARRY SOUND
DISTRICT PLANNING BOARD IN RESPECT OF THE PROPOSED CONSENT, YOU MUST
MAKE A WRITTEN REQUEST TO THE PLANNING BOARD AT THE ADDRESS BELOW.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND MATERIAL on this application is available to the public for
inspection at the Planning Board office. Please quote FILE NO. B-035/25, B-036/25 & B-037/25

DATED AT THE Southeast Parry Sound District Planning Board OFFICE THIS 28™ DAY OF
JULY, 2025.

For more information about this matter, contact:

Linda Moyer, Secretary-Treasurer Office Location:
Southeast Parry Sound District Planning Board

P.O. Box 310 1695 Emsdale Road
Kearney, Ontario POA 1MO Emsdale, ON

Telephone: (705) 787-5070

Email: Imoyer@sepsdplanningboard.ca




69 UTTLE FALLS ROAD, SPR
KPK SURVEYING INC.
SCALE 1:1500

SKETCH FOR SEVERANCE PURPOSES
PREPARED FOR 2187644 ONTARIO LIMITED

UCEDALE

CAUTION:

THS IS HOT A PLAN OF SURVEY AND SHALL NOT BE
USED DXCEFT FOR THE PURFOSE BROCATED M DE TITLE
BLOCK.

HOTE:

-!-..\J\ mﬁ!m 2023,
‘”q'?%\ METRC:
smd DISTANCES AND COORDINATES SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE M
4o VETRES AND BE CONVRTED TO FIET &Y ONOING BY
- 4B % s
o - iR
s - 1§81 § LEGEND:
o - S S8 DONOTES SynoMa FoN B
~. £S8  DENOTES SHOAT STANDARD MON BAR
o oY TR ] DENOTES RCH BAR
< szv:nmj FI8 DENOTES AGLIO BON BAR
1 0.25% kg [22) OEHOTES £J. WILLWIS UMD, OLS
- (0622 ACAES) 1240  DEWOTES EERO HALKIN LIMTED, O.LS.
B~ RE-ICHE AS S|  KPK  OEMOTES KPK SURVEYHG INC, OLS.
E SUF DENOTES UNE FRONTAGE
- TaR DENOTES 1O BE RIUOVED
1
]
]
i
]
—
wnn =i
s
P
%%\ |
2
= e
\\:“\
GEOGRAPHIC TOWNSHIP OF McMURRICH S, b
: LOT 16 42R-6975
L] CONCESSION 12
RU ZONE .
B(EM) FETWNED 5
WOk van
PART 2,
42R-6925
o
g
g
[-I!‘(
- - b
’gi(w«u
:—: 2 § PART 1, 42R-4219
-
S| s
CONCESSION 12
e ,,i 2
b CONCESSION 11 m)

LOT 17
LoT 16

KPR SURVEMNG INC, OLS. 15 STRICTLY PROMETED,

THE REPRODUCTION, ALTERATIGH, OR USE OF THIS SITE PLAN
(© M WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE EXPRESS PLRUISSION OF

FELDWORK COMPLETED: NOVEMBER 1Bth, 2023

PIK

REVISORS
4 [V ProrosD SCARD LorS|7023/08/02] KK
3 [Revs roPosEn soveReD Lors [ 2025,08/13 | ke SURVEYING
2 [sect reores0 v o /os| v KPK SURVEYING INC.
12 ol s
1| ReiEAsED FoR REvEw |2024/02/27] WPK i e e
No

REVISON

DATE

OANTED BY: BT | AILE NO: 230521

AJOI\INITIRCULT DRACI\IICN B 1150 N0



3035723 B-034/25°7 B 037/25

R

Application for Consent
Undier Secfion &3 of the Planning Act

Note to Applicanis: This application form Is fo be used if ihe SOUTHEAST PARRY SOUND
DISTRICT PLANNING BOARD Is the consent granting authority, in this form
the ferm “subjeci' iund means the fand fo be severed and the lond fo be

refained,

Compleleness of fhe Appllcation

The Infoirmnction In fhis form thed MUST be provided by the opplicant
Is Inclicated by bink arows on fhe left'edde of the seclion numbers.
This Infermation §s preeciibed In tha Schedula to Ontarto Regudation
197/96 moxde under the Planning Acl, The mandatory Informition
must be provded wih the oppropitle fee. if the mandalory
Information cnd fee are not provided, the Paning Bootd Wil refum
tha application or refuse fo further consider the applcadion untl the
information cind fee have been piovided,

Trea application form clso sels out ofher information that will assist the
Planning #oard and ofhers In thel planning evalioiion of the
consent oppieation. To ensuie the quickest ond moxt complete
roview, iz pformalion should be submited o fhe frme of
apploation. In the absence of ihs Infommgtion, It may not be
posible 1o do o cormnpiate teview wihin tha legidated fime fame for
making a deciion, As a resull the application may be refused.

Submission of ihe Applogtion

© One applictdionfarm k required for each paroel fo ba savared.

® The application fee.

@ 1 onginal copy of the compleled application fomn and sketch,
Msamuraments o to ba In mefic unifs.

For Help

For more information on the Planning Act, the
consent process, Provinclal and local policies,
please contact the Secretary/Treasurer of the
Soeutheast Parry Sound District Planning Board
at (705) 636=7068 705-787-5070

1, lieand informotion

B-1 Nome of ), An Qwnar's auihorizotion b
2187644 Ontario Limited

BiznAx Teephons 1O,
705-360-5000
AOdNe 4 ibherd Road Huntsville, ON PTH 1C9 Fere
2. locution of the Subject Land (Cornplste applicable boxesin 2.1)
B 2.1 Distict MasicipoRybnosgenized kawreip Foirner Township
East Parry Sound McMurrich/Monteith McMurrich
Cqmslsjn Pumbers) Lod Biumbas) Rogitered Flan No, (3ubd) Lotsyaiock(s)
12 16
Refsrenca Plan Ne, Pod Nurnbers) Parcel No, Nome of Sheatfead
Litile Falls Road
Strest o, §sciion or Mining Looation No,

(18]

5"2'2 e hale any easements of reshicive covenants affecing the sublect land?
L [_Ives_ It Yor, describe the easement or covenant and fis effect.

Foge t

11 2095
9.\




4 WmermmmﬁmmM;

Tofched
Fmrlnga(m) 1) 31m 2)33 8m 3)89.9m 124.9m
Depih (M) 1)86.3m 2)86.3 m 3)51.5m 269m
 Ama (ho o ) 1) 25ha 2) .25ha 3) .25ha 7.6ha
i um:uu.il Extsing Usefs) vacant v_acan.t
B Proposact Ussfs) Residential Residential
¥ mnm Exsiing 1)2) vacant &3) garage Cabin & Shed TBR
%ﬂw L Dwelling on each lot Dwelling
> A
{ctwack Provincial Hghwioy ‘
Mm, - public Road 1)X 2)X 3)X . X
Name of Aufhody mantaining lood | McMurrich/Monteith McMurrich/Monteith
Common hams of road Little Falls Road Little Falls Road
" prvadi Road (dsacrbe b Seclon 4.6)
Right of woy (cisecdbe In Seciion 4.6}
" Pedod of Maintenonce: Seasonal
MearRound | 1)X 2)X 3)X X
i . Waler Access (Descibe Iy Section 4
B 45 WawrSupply Publcly owned ond opexsed
appiopit e
1008}
. wel n Secion .1
 Inchiduiol wel ' 1) X 2)x 3)x proposed X proposed
Lake or other water bodly _
mmmnmm)
B i
| 1)X 2)X 3)X proposed

proposed




Cecholy X 2)X 3)X X
wosd * Shootbursng X D)X 3)X X.

&
P
¥. \ho 0 O O :r boct kond i ¢a 1]s vmw IOPNG OF0e ot s f i-erm'n'fa Lhinbad
xisung hropoeseg ;
¥, .f.:.’.'" ."'5".?”'.‘“: hin 600 0 blatt fond b acind
L thoab aopoRdain bowes, K Ony GUDN. .
Use of feoiur
MWWWWMWGW
Alondftl

* Asswage heclment piant of wosle siabitzaon pian!
. Aprovincialy signiioant wefland (Class 1, 2 of 3 wetianc
'Amwwwmummmemmmamw NA
Food piiin
A tshabiitated mine e
Amqsau&mmﬂewmnlﬂmhaofheubieclmd
An active mmine e,
An industilal of cormmescial wee, and epacily the use(s)
~ An octive Ksway ine '
A municipal of fedierol alpon o

6. H fory of ihe Subject kand




7.

8.  5ke10h et attachon swtch sheap fo heio you prepor the sholon, mfer fo the ditoched Somps Sisich by Tha oplooton Guide Q& A'

P 61 hecpplicakion must be cecompanied by a scelch shoitng the folowing: ,
@ fhie boundades and dimensions of fhe tubject and, the port ihatla fo be severed and he pat hat s fo ba mioined
@ ha boundodas and dimengona of any kinct owned by the owner of the subject fand and that alouts e sibject iond

@ this locolion of alliond previotsly ssvaied fram ihe paroel oiginaly by thes curent pwner of tha wbject land
.mmmammmmmmmm
the opplicond may offect the cpplicolion, such os bulldings, raliweaye, roods, watetoousen, diolhage diches, iver or
sheam banks, wellands, woaded orects, wells ond seplic forks

* @ the eisting usals) on asiacent londs
© T location, wikith ond nome of any roads wilin of chutting ihe subjec? kund, lndicoting whethes B ls on Unapened road

aliowanea, 0 public bavelad road, a privata read o a dght of way
oummmmmhwmmnmummwmmmwmm
omm‘mmdwmmamhmm ;

., i
9. OfherInformation
9.1 1 there any ofher infomnation that you fhirk may be useful to the Pianning Board, or olher agencles in reviewing fhis applcation?
It 0, expicin below or altach on o ecparale page.

10. Affidovit or Sworn Declaration of Applicani{s)
> Affidavit or Sworn Declaration for the Information set out in this Application

,mﬁ2187644 Ontario Limited , Dave Ryan ol the. Town of Huntsville -
in the_ District of Muskoka meke oath and say (or solemnly declare) that the infarmalion contained in this application
lg true and that the Information contained In the documents that accompany thia application is true.

Swom {or declered) before me M RYAN

atthe ﬂwﬂ _@/f H—L./VL s V')‘bf F,"QS“:AQA{_ Applicant
Inthe.d )\ 2t s el
this

Applicant

Poge 4

~ Bxplres September 14, 2026,




14. Authorlzations of Owners)

1.4 lthe s ot the awne; of the fand thal is the subject of this application, the written authorfzatlon of the owner(s) that the
d tpp!hﬁlmmlndtomnlmhoappnodmnmabammumhupm&nnrmmmnmomwmmmu

TP puthortzation of Ounr(e) for Agent fo Make the Appllcation

Iiwe, 2187644 Ontarig Limited . Dave Ryan.., am/era the owner(s) of the land that I8 the subject of this applicaton for &
consent and I/we authotize John P Gallagher to make this appiioation on

mylour hehatl, | M iD RYAN

La e T
TUL(\Q‘— ;.h ) s S-’. F res (é&a\,{-“ Slgnature of Owner

Signsture of Owner

11.2 lthe applicantis nit the owner of the land thit s i subject of hls application, oompleto the suthorization of the awner(s)
conceming personal infarmation set out below.

Authorization of Owner(s) for Agent to Provide Personal Informetion

m_2187644 Ontario Limited , Dave Ryan  guare the owner(s) of the land thetis the subjeat of this appiicetion for a

conasntand for the puposss of the Fresdom of information and Prolection of Privacy Act, 1o John P Gallagher
a8 my/our agent for thin application, to provide any of my/our parsonel Informationthet will he Invluded In this application or will be

coleotad during the procssaing of the eppication. Z—_DAYID RYAN

Tune l';-m\ 7S Progcdent Signalae of Owner

8lgnature of Owner

12. Consent of Owner(s)

Complete the consent of the owner(s) concering perconal information set ot below. ‘
Consent of the Owner(s) to the Use and Disclosure of Personsl Information

e 2187644 Ontario Limited , Day@R¥ bwner(s) of the land thatis the stizjeat of this consent eppiication and for the
purpoass of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Ael, Ifwe atthorizo and consent 1o the use by or the disclosure to
any person or public body of any personal Information thatis collected under the suthurily of the Plannfag Act for the putrposes of

!lomdnuthlsa-pﬁmﬂon. % DEWD B‘ AN

Pres: et SomirectOumer

T e (2T A
Date

Appiicants must complete the faliowing check list to ensure that ell neceasary infarmationis providisd (check appropriala box):
£ 1 Gomplsted application form including sketch
0 Current parcel abstract (land title)
1 Curient vefarence plan of suvey or ragistered plan (if avalinhla)
1 Prescribed application fee, ether aa a contified chegue or monay order, payable to1hs Southeast Parry Sound District Planning Board.

The Planning Board will assign a File Number for camplete applications and this shouid be used In e communications.

Signature of Owner

Submit completed agpllcation and f010: o o 1. A 6T PARRY SOUND DISTRICT PLANNING BOARD

8 Main Street, P.O. Box 310 Poge &
Kearney, ON POA 1MO ‘ .




SKETCH FOR SEVERANCE PURPOSES
PREPARED FOR 2187644 ONTARIO LIMITED
69 LITTLE FALLS ROAD, SPRUCEDALE

KPK SURVEYING INC.

SCALE 1:1500

CAUTION:
THIS 1S NOT A PLAN OF SURVEY AND SHALL NOT BE
USED EXCEPT FOR THE PURPOSE INDICATED IN THE TITLE

BLOCK.
15m 0 15 75m
NOTE:
THIS SKETCH HAS BEEN DERIVEQ FROM FIELD SURVEY
g COMPLETED NOVEMBER 16th, 2023.
8
B METRIC:
orosoTEE H) DISTANCES AND COORDINATES SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE IN
q 5 METRES AND CAN BE CONVERTED TO FEET BY DIVIDING BY
£aves - on' Lhi 26 S 0.3048.
casi - O Dt g" g \Q’.DIO}\ -
enves - 28508 85 ‘ DY LEGEND:
caon - &2 5 /T 7 o DENOTES FOUND MONUMENT
" o¢ I S8 DENOTES STANDARD IRON BAR
enves - ol B / | S5 DENOTES SHORT STADARD RN BHR
ONE STOREY o B
cAs | SEVERED 3 | gg  DENOTES ROUND IRON BAR
onres 0.25% ho EM  DENOTES E.J. WILLIAMS SURVEYING LIMITED, O.LS.
~ |leo (0.62+ ACRES) 1240  DENOTES EERO HALINEN LIMITED, O.LS.
2 a RE-ZONE AS RS|  gpk  DENOTES KPK SURVEYING INC., O.LS.
= e a, SLF DENOTES STRAIGHT LINE FRONTAGE
c Jlg e, T8R  DENOTES TO BE REMOVED
ot} |- 2 e
! 1w 5!9\\\?&,
I % oy Q S5 %‘\%
b  © L e B B
| OO Lpgh -
1+235¢ ,fL’/ ™~ f~ \ 57.4
- \)’,
142138 ) Q0
1
3.0
- T
I \[
o~
GEQOGRAPHIC TOWNSHIP OF McMURRICH %
PART 1,
LOT 16 42R—-6925
1's]
|
Yy CONCESSION 12
RU ZONE =
IB(EJW) + RETAINED o
7.6% ha -
mfl‘_:_?___ 1405.24
=~ - 140828
PART 2,
N 42R—-6925
o
10|
§ |
/—0.4 '
. 3 -
3 SSIB(1240)
r~ 0 5
] o 8 PART 1, 42R-4219
S g
_[ CONCESSION 12 0.2
e 239.3 S | ——
2395 —=
RIB(OU)

—

SSIB(EM) |
I CONCESSION 11
™~ | w0
5 | 5 FIELDWORK COMPLETED: NOVEMBER 16th, 2023
- | f -t
REVSIONS <p I(
4 |REVISED PROPOSED SEVERED LOTS [ 2025/08/02]  KPK
3 |REVISED PROPOSED SEVERED LOTS [ 2025/05/13| kP SURVEYING
2 |ADDED PROFDSED SEVERED LOTS|2025/04/04|  KPK KpguiggvmgcolNc'
ILLE, ON
THE REPRODUCTION, ALTERATION, OR USE OF THIS SITE PLAN 1| RELEASED FOR REVIEW |2024/02/27| KPK :
IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE EXPRESS PERMISSION OF AL 705.788.2701  KPKSURVEY.CA
KPK SURVEYING INC., O.L.S. IS STRICTLY PROMIBITED. No. REVISION DATE  |APPROVED| | prarTeD BY: BT |FILE NO: 230521
\2023\,21052 1\PROJECT DRAWINGS\ 230521 5P 1_1500.0WG




SKETCH FOR SEVERANCE PURPOSES
PREPARED FOR 2187644 ONTARIO LIMITED
69 LITTLE FALLS ROAD, SPRUCEDALE
KPK SURVEYING INC.

SCALE 1:1500

15m 0 15 75m

—
0400.0
o
0+22.0 =2
EAVES — ON UNE &
0+22.4 :
CABIN - ON UNE o
EAVES — 2.9% %memw &
CABIN - ON (g “I=
EAVES - owﬂ.m_ﬁm m,b..v
ONE STOREY e [ =
CABIN &V@W& | SEVERED 3
ON PIERS %&Q N | 0.25% ha
vy 4 N | (0.62% ACRES)
iy \ |RE—ZONE AS RS
=
O
)
142355 _
1+27.32 — |
3.0

CAUTION:

THIS IS NOT A PLAN OF SURVEY AND SHALL NOT BE
USED EXCEPT FOR THE PURPOSE INDICATED IN THE TITLE
BLOCK.

NOTE:
THIS SKETCH HAS BEEN DERIVED FROM FIELD SURVEY
COMPLETED NOVEMBER 16th, 2023.

METRIC:

DISTANCES AND COORDINATES SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE IN
METRES AND CAN BE CONVERTED TO FEET BY DIVIDING BY
0.3048.

LEGEND:

B DENOTES FOUND MONUMENT

SiB DENOTES STANDARD IRON BAR

SSiB DENCTES SHORT STANDARD IRON BAR
1B DENCTES IRON BAR

RIB DENOTES ROUND IRON BAR

EJw DENOTES E.J. WILLIAMS SURVEYING LIMITED, O.LS.
1240 DENOTES EERO HALINEN LIMITED, O.L.S.
KPK DENOTES KPK SURVEYING INC., O.L.S.
SLF DENOTES STRAIGHT LINE FRONTAGE
TBR DENOTES TO BE REMOVED



JOHN P. GALLAGHER & ASSOCIATES
PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT & DESIGN CONSULTANTS

Planning Report
2187644 Ontario Limited
(David Ryan)

69 Little Falls Road, Sprucedale

June 10, 2025

1.0 Introduction

This planning report has been prepared by John P. Gé!lqgher and Associates in conjunction with consent
applications for the creation of three new lots. The applications, drawings, fees and deed form part of
this submission. The subject lands comprise Part of Lot 16, Concession 12, geographic Township of
McMurrich in the District of East Parry Sound. The municipal address is 69 Little Falls Road. The property
has approximately 280m frontage on Little Falls Road and comprises 8.25 ha lot area.

The property is fairly level along the road and rises to the rear beyond the toe of the slope. It is well
treed. There does not appear to be any watercourses or wetlands on the lands. There is some seasonal
ponding, as a result of no roadside ditching in front of Severed Lots 1 & 2. Residential lots exist in the
area abutting the subject lands. Structures on the site include an old one storey cabin and shed, both
which will be removed. There is a garage in the location of the Severed Lot 3 and remains of the old
dwelling foundation. Previously, the site was serviced by well water and septic system. Access will be
from Little Falls Road. ‘

Prior to submission, preconsultation was provided by Rick Hunter of Planscape on behalf of the
Township of McMurrich Monteith. The proposal was revised to reduce the number of lots created and
to address items noted.

2.0 Proposal

The Owners propose to create three new lots for residential development on the site, as shown on the
severance sketch,

TELEPHONE/FACSIVILE (705) 789-5300
EMAIL: Jpgplan@surenst.aet
www.plannlngconsuliani.net



These lots will front on a year round maintained public road. Proposed entrances have been shown on
the plan. An existing driveway will be utilized for the retained lot. The lots will be serviced by well water
and septic system. A large portion of the lands retained, will be left for potential future development.
The Owner is not intending to create any more lots at this time, given the current market, costs
associated with subdivision approval and location of the lots.

The Severed Lot 1 will have 31m lot frontage with a lot area of 0.25 ha. The Severed Lot 2 will have
frontage of 33.8m lot frontage with a lot area of 0.25 ha. The Severed Lot 3 would have 89.9m frontage
with a lot area of 0.25ha. Severed Lot 3 has the existing garage and the foundation of the old dwelling.
There is ample room on the lot for the replacement of the dwelling and septic meeting the RS zoning.
The toe of the slope has been identified and the new dwelling will likely be built closer to the road as
there is significant depth, between the toe of slope and front yard requirement.

All the severed lots would be rezoned to Residential Settlement in accordance with Comprehensive
Bylaw for the Township.

The retained lot would have approximately 124m frontage on Little Falls Road with a lot area of 7.6 ha.
The cabin and shed would be removed. There is an existing driveway that will provide access for the
retained lot, including the back lands. The eastern portion of the retained lot has a steep slope running
through it and access could not be achieved along this section. There is no site alteration proposed in
this area. There is ample area for a dwelling, well and septic in the area of the old shed.

3.0 McMurrich Monteith Official Plan

The lands are identified as Settlement Area on Schedule “A” of the McMurrich Monteith Official Plan.
Below are some of the relevant policies of the Official Plan and commentary of same.

2.3.3 Housing

Single detached residential housing will remain the dominant housing type.

The proposal is for three single detached dwellings.

2.3.5 Infrastructure

Significant expansion of municipal infrastructure is not anticipated.

All development shall have private on-site water and sewage disposal systems. Confirmation that o
suitable water supply exists and that an adequate sewage disposal system may be or has been installed
is required. Development of more than five (5) lots will require the preparation of a Servicing Options
Statement.

The three lots would be serviced by well water and septic system. There is ample room on each lot for
services. As it is three lots, no Servicing Options Statement is required.

4,3 Settlement Areas



4.3.1 Identification

Settlement Areas have been designated on the basis of historic development and include Sprucedale,
Bear Lake, and Whitehall, as identified on Schedule A to this Plan. These areas have been developed
predominantly for residential purposes, with some commercial, institutional and other community uses.
Due to servicing constraints, limited development is anticipated in these areas; they have been identified
as nodes of existing development and are recognized for their historic significance and as areas with the
potential for smaller lot sizes than required elsewhere in the Township.

The proposal is within the Settlement Area of Sprucedale. The use of residential is consistent with the
direction of the Plan. The municipality has provided direction for smaller lot sizes in the Settlement
Area. '

4.3.2 Principles

The maintenance of the residential character and promotion of an efficient residential development
pattern are basic principles for the Settlement Areas.

Community oriented institutional, commercial and retail establishments, which complement the
residential character of the built up areas, will also be encouraged to locate within the Settlement Area
designations.

The development of an efficient residential pattern is encouraged through residential intensification and
infilling, although development that would require municipal water and sewer services will be considered
premature. Regardless of a property’s identification in a settlement area, the Shoreline policies of this
Plan shall apply to any lot with frontage on a shoreline located within an identified settlement area.

The proposal will build on the residential character of the area. There have been recent consents of
similar sized lots nearby. The lots are faid out to efficiently use the land and existing infrastructure, being
the municipal year round road. The lots have taken into account the potential of future development of
the back lands by maintaining appropriate access.

4.3.3 Permitted Uses

i) a single detached dwelling;

ii) a semi-detached or duplex dwelling;
iii) an apartment dwelling;

iv) small scale commercial businesses including home occupations, home industries, and bed and
breakfast establishments;

v) community institutional, commercial and retail establishments;

vi) tourist commercial and retail establishments;



vii) recreational uses; and,
viii) any use in connection with government utilities or departments.

Certain other uses may be appropriate on land in the Settlement Area designations, however, their
potential for off-site impacts cannot be determined in advance and should be reviewed on a site-by-site

basis.

Uses such as four-plex dwellings, garden suites, institutional developments or small scale industrial
operations will be allowed by site specific zoning amendment but will not require an amendment to this
Plan so long as municipal water and sewer services would not be required and the general intent of the
Plan is maintained.

Single detached dwellings are permitted uses in the Official Plan.
4.3.4 Development Policies

Settlement Area boundaries, as shown on Schedule A, are based on natural and man-made features and
shall be considered general in nature.

If a development proposal is submitted which is largely within the boundaries of the Settlement Areaq, the
boundaries shall be interpreted to include the whole of the development without requiring an
amendment to this Pian.

Settlement Area lots should be of sufficient dimension and size to accommodate the use proposed,
related structures, and on-site water and sewage disposal systems.

The minimum lot area shall be 0.2 hectare (0.5 acre) with a minimum frontage of 30 metres (100 feet)
for the creation of new residential lots; minimum standards for commercial uses will be established in
the Zoning By-law.

The proposed lots would exceed the lot frontage and lot area requirements for the creation of new
residential lots. The lots are of appropriate size and shape to accommodate a dwelling, septic, well and
amenity area.

Growth should be encouraged in depth, rather than in linear strips along existing roads.

Consents may be permitted within a Settlement Area provided the proposed development intensifies or
expands existing development and the lot is suitable for the use proposed. Where a consent is proposed
in an area which has not previously been developed, it shall promote the orderly development of the
area; a plan indicating potential future development patterns for the area may be requested.

The layout is consistent with the above policy as it is a natural progression of the residential lots in the
settlement area. The lots are deep and wide. There is a residential lot to the west of the subject lands.
The retained lot has been sized to ensure the orderly development of the back lands in the future,

should that occur. Appropriate access has been kept on the Retained Lot on the west side, as access is



not available on the east side. It is not the Owners intent to develop the back lands. Any future plan for
these lands would require extensive review and costs.

Duplex dwellings, semi-detached dwellings and apartment dwellings that can be serviced with private
on-site water and sewage disposal systems will be permitted in the Settlement Areas, provided servicing
approval has been obtained from the appropriate authority(s). A Servicing Options Statement and/or
hydrogeological study will be required prior to the development of 5 or more lots or dwelling units.

The proposal is for three single detached dwellings. This would not trigger a Servicing Options
Statement.

Development of a scale which would require additional municipal services or change the character of the
Settlement Area shall require an amendment to this Plan.

The installation of a municipal water supply and sewer system will not be considered for the life of this
Plan, and will only be considered in a Settlement Area for reasons of public health and safety and when
the density of development is sufficient to economically permit the construction of such systems.

The scale of development is low, with only three lots. It would not change the character of the area as it
is limited residential growth.

6.9 Lot Creation
The preferred method of land division in the Township will be by means of consent.
6.9.1 Consent

In addition to specific land use policies, the following criteria shall be applied to the creation of lots by
consent:

i) Council shall establish that a plan of subdivision is not required for the proper and orderiy development
of the land,

i) conformity with the overall intent, goals, objectives and policies of the Official Plan;

iii) the lot should be reasonably well proportioned, of regular shape and dimension, and must be of
sufficient size and configuration to be serviced by private on-site water and sewage disposal systems;

iv) the lot must front on an existing year round publicly maintained Township road, except as otherwise
permitted in the Shoreline designation;

v) the lot shall not create a traffic hazard to sight lines, curves, or grades of existing development, as set
out in accepted traffic engineering standards; and,

vi) the lot shall meet Minimum Distance Separation requirements, as established in the Zoning By-law



The proposal is the creation of lots through the consent process. Thisis typical for the amount of lots
being proposed. The proposal meets the intent, goals and objectives of the Official Plan. The lots have
been laid out in a regular shape and size, exceeding the lot size requirements of the Plan. There is ample
room on each lot for the placement of a dwelling, well and septic system. All the lots front on an existing
year round maintained public road which is straight and has good sight lines. Entrance locations have
been provided on the Severance Sketch.

4.0 Subdivision Criteria in s. 51(24)

Section 53 (Section 51(24) of the Planning Act sets out matters for which a plan of subdivision application
is to have regard to. In my opinion, the proposed plan of subdivision has regard for the applicable criteria
as follows:

a) the effect of development of the proposed subdivision on matters of provincial interest as referred to
in section 2;

The proposed consent applications have regard for matters of provincial interest as it represents orderly
development in an appropriate location for growth and development (s.2(h) and (p)). The new
residential lots will be in close proximity to a provincial highway. The subject lands are located within a

Settlement Area which allows for residential development. The lots will use private services for water
and wastewater (s.2(f}). The proposal will contribute three new residential units in the form of single

detached dwellings in the Township (s.2(j)).
|
b) whether the proposed subdivision is premature or in the public interest:

In my opinion, the proposed consents are not premature as there is a need for housing and the subject
|
lands are located within the Settlement Area with other residential lots nearby.

c) Whether the plan conforms to the official plan and adjacent plans of subdivision, if an V;

The applications conform to the McMurrich Monteith Official Plan, as discussed in the previous section.
|

d) the suitability of the land for the purposes for which it is to be subdivided.

The Subject Lands have been designated for residential within the Settlement area. The lots have been
size and laid out to demonstrate they are suitable for the development

e)the number, width, location and proposed grades and elevations of highways, and the adequacy of
them, and the highways linking the highways in the proposed subdivision with the established highway
system in the vicinity and the adequacy of them;

The consent applications do not propose any new public street. It does allow for a potential 20m access
to the back lands. The existing road is year round maintained and appropriate access can be granted for
the lots.

f) the dimensions and shapes of the proposed lots



The lots are mostly of a regular rectangular shape and allow for suitably sized dwelling on each lot. The
Severed Lot 3 has the building site beyond the toe of the slope to ensure site alteration does not occur
in that area. All lots exceed the lot frontage and lot area requirements of the Official Plan and proposed
RS Zoning.

g) the restrictions or proposed restrictions, if any, on the land proposed to be subdivided or the buildings
and structures proposed to be erected on it and the restrictions, if any, on adjoining land;

The proposed lots will be zoned appropriately to ensure the structures are laid out in accordance with
the zone regulations.

h) conservation of natural resources and flood control;

There are no flooding issues or wetlands on the subject lands.
i) the adequacy of utilities and municipal services

Private services are the preferred form of servicing in the rural settlement area, as no municipal systems
exists.

/) the adequacy of school sites;

The existing schools in the area likely can accommodate the potential increase in students from the
three homes.

k) the area of land, if any, within the proposed subdivision that, exclusive of highways, is to be conveyed
or dedicated for public purposes;

Cash in lieu of parkland will be required by the consent application.
" 5.0 Provincial Planning Statement 2024

2.1.3. At the time of creating a new official plan and each official plan update, sufficient land shall be
made available to accommodate an appropriate range and mix of land uses to meet projected needs for
a time horizon of at least 20 years, but not more than 30 years, informed by provincial guidance.
Planning for infrastructure, public service facilities, strategic growth areas and employment areas may
extend beyond this time horizon

2.2.1. Planning authorities shall provide for an appropriate range and mix of housing options and
densities to meet projected needs of current and future residents of the regional market area by:

b) permitting and facilitating:

1. all housing options required to meet the social, health, economic and wellbeing requirements of
current and future residents, including additional needs housing and needs arising from demographic
changes and employment opportunities; and



2. all types of residential intensification, including the devefopment and redevelopment of underutilized
commercial and institutional sites {e.g., shopping malls and plazas) for residential use, development and
introduction of new housing options within previously developed areas, and redevelopment, which
results in a net increase in residential units in accordance with policy 2.3.1.3;

¢) promoting densities for new housing which efficiently use land, resources, infrastructure and public
service facilities, and support the use of active transportation; and

The Township has identified the land as a Settlement Area where growth is directed to. The Township
has established lot sizes for this area to ensure the land is being efficiently used. The proposal also
efficiently uses the infrastructure being Little Falls Road.

2.3.1 General Policies for Settlement Areas

1. Settfement areas shall be the focus of growth and development. Within settlement areas, growth
should be focused in, where applicable, strategic growth areas, including major transit station areas.

2. Land use patterns within settfement areas should be based on densities and a mix of land uses which:
a) efficiently use land and resources;

b) optimize existing and planned infrastructure and public service facilities;

c) support active transportation;

d) are transit-supportive, as appropriate; and

e} are freight-supportive.

3. Planning authorities shall support general intensification and redevelopment to support the
achievement of complete communities, including by planning for a range and mix of housing options and
prioritizing planning and investment in the necessary infrastructure and public service facilities.

The proposal is within the Settlement area with close proximity to the Village of Sprucedale and a
provincial highway. The municipality has provided density provisions through the sizing of the lots.

2.5.2. Inrural areas, rural settlement areas shall be the focus of growth and development and their
vitality and regeneration shall be promoted.

2.5.3. When directing development in rural settlement areas in accordance with policy 2.3, planning
authorities shall give consideration to locally appropriate rural characteristics, the scale of development
and the provision of appropriate service levels.

Proposal falls within this area and meeting the scale of the development. It is three lots.

2.6.1. On rural lands located in municipalities, permitted uses are:



c) residential development, including lot creation, where site conditions are suitable for the provision of
appropriate sewage and water services;

2.6.2. Development that can be sustained by rural service levels should be promoted.

The Official Plan supports residential development, including lot creation, in the Settlement area. The
lots are sized to accommodate a dwelling, well and septic system.

2.6.3. Development shall be appropriate to the infrastructure which is planned or available, and avoid
the need for the uneconomical expansion of this infrastructure.

Private well and septic systems are the preferred form of servicing where no municipal services exists.

6.0 Zoning Bylaw

The lands are currently zoned Rural (RU1). The lots to the east are zoned Settlement Residential (RS).
The proposed lots will meet the lot area and lot frontage requirements of the Settlement Residential
(RS) Zoning Bylaw, once zoned. The RS zone permits residential dwellings. All other zone requirements
of the Zoning Bylaw will be met. This is in keeping with the intent of the Zoning Bylaw. It is appropriate
to zone the severed lands (RS) for residential development.

7.0 Conclusion

It is my professional opinion that applications for consent are consistent with the Provincial Planning
Statement 2024 and conforms to the Township of McMurrich Monteith Official Plan and represents
good planning.

Yours truly,

Johh P. Gallagher, MCIP, RPP



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH

BY-LAW 36 - 2025

Being a By-Law to confirm the proceedings of Council
Meetings: August 5, 2025

WHEREAS Section 5(3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.0. 2001, Chapter 24, as
amended, requires a municipal Council to exercise a municipal power, including a
municipality’s capacity, rights powers and privileges under Section 9, by by-law unless
the municipality is specifically authorized to do otherwise;

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith deems it desirable
to confirm the proceedings of Council at its meeting hereinafter set out.

NOW THEREFORE THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF
MCMURRICH/MONTEITH HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1. Ratification and Confirmation
That the action of this Council of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith at its meetings
set out below with respect to each motion, resolution and other action passed and taken
by this Council at its meetings, except where otherwise required, is hereby adopted,
ratified and confirmed as if such proceedings and actions were expressly adopted and
confirmed by its separate By-law.

2. Execution of all Documents
That the Mayor of the Council of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith and the proper
officers of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith are hereby authorized and directed to
do all things necessary to give effect to the said action or to obtain approvals where
required and except where otherwise provided, the Mayor and Clerk are hereby
authorized and directed to execute all necessary documents and to affix the Corporate
Seal of the Township to such documents.

Read a first, second and third time, signed and the Seal of the Corporation affixed
thereto and finally passed this 19" day of August, 2025.

Mayor Clerk-Treasurer
Glynn Robinson Cheryl Marshall

P |
DVQX/}QJ-‘)/

10-\



Ontario @

NEWS RELEASE
Ontario Doubling Fire Protection Grant to Protect More Firefighters

Province helping to expand cancer prevention initiatives and improve safety for lithium-ion
battery related emergencies

August 13, 2025
Ministry of the Solicitor General

NORTH YORK — As part of its plan to protect Ontario and keep communities safe, the
Ontario government is increasing this year’s Fire Protection Grant funding from $10 million
to $20 million. The investment will help municipal fire departments expand cancer
prevention initiatives and improve emergency response to lithium-ion battery related

incidents.

“Firefighters are always there when we need them, running towards danger to protect our
homes and our communities,” said Solicitor General Michael Kerzner. “That is why we’re
doubling this year’s Fire Protection Grant, giving firefighters across the province the tools
they need to stay safe and effectively respond to life threatening emergencies.”

The Fire Protection Grant is available to municipal fire departments for both new and
existing initiatives. Eligible projects include:

« Equipment, supplies and personal protective equipment that enhance municipal
cancer prevention initiatives

« Equipment and supplies for lithium-ion battery incident response

e Minorinfrastructure upgrades and modernization, including enhanced broadband

and internet connectivity

“This funding increase demonstrates the commitment to firefighter health and safety. The
Fire Protection Grant allows municipalities to address their individual needs to support
firefighters on the front lines by giving them the tools to protect themselves and do their
jobs effectively,” said Ontario Fire Marshal Jon Pegg. “With the growing risk of lithium-ion
battery fires, this increased funding is another major step towards keeping Ontario’s
firefighters and communities safe and | encourage the fire service to apply.”



Ontario @

Municipal fire departments can apply for funding starting August 13 until September 30,
2025. More information on eligibility and how to apply is available online through Transfer

Quick Facts

« There are approximately 33,000 municipal firefighters in Ontario. This includes more
than 12,500 full-time firefighters, more than 20,000 volunteer firefighters and almost
400 part-time firefighters.

« Firefighters are more likely to experience health problems because of exposure to
hazardous chemicals. In Canada, 50 to 60 firefighters die of cancer every year and
half of those are from Ontario.

« Ontario’s Working for Workers Six Act, 2024 improved cancer coverage for
firefighters, investigators, and volunteers by removing the requirement that a
firefighter’s primary-site colorectal diagnosis must be made before the age of 61
and lowering the required duration of service for primary-site kidney cancer care
coverage from 20 to 10 years, which is the lowest duration of service in Canada.

Quotes

"Every day, firefighters protect Ontario families and communities, and our government is
continuing to take bold action to protect these world-class first responders. By doubling
the Fire Protection Grant, we are ensuring municipal firefighters have access to the tools
and equipment they need to stay safe in critical situations, when they are needed most."

- Sylvia Jones
Deputy Premier and Minister of Health

"This funding support will strengthen our existing cancer prevention programs while
enhancing emergency response capabilities for firefighters who protect our city. As health
and safety risks continue to grow, particularly with emergency threats like lithium-ion
batteries, this funding can provide additional tools and resources our firefighters need to
stay safe while serving the residents of Toronto."

-JimJessop
Fire Chief and General Manager, Toronto Fire Services



Ontario @

"The Ontario Association of Fire Chiefs (OAFC) is deeply grateful to the provincial
government for providing and increasing the Fire Protection Grant. Occupational cancers
continue to be a leading cause of death, and this grant will enable fire departments to
implement cancer prevention programs that reduce that risk. In addition, responses to
lithium-ion battery incidents present new and emerging challenges, for which this grant will
allow fire departments to invest in training and equipment to help mitigate the risks.
Ontario’s fire departments and firefighters greatly value our extremely positive relationship
with the provincial government and thank them for this very important investment.”

- Rob Grimwood
Deputy Fire Chief and President, Ontario Association of Fire Chiefs

"Too many firefighters are impacted by occupational cancer every year, even though they
wear their supplied gear and follow strict health and safety protocols. | com mend the
Ontario government for doubling its Fire Protection Grant initiative. This crucial funding will
allow local departments to purchase specialized personal protective equipment and
importantly, washing and drying equipment to properly decontaminate their bunker gear.
This is a timely and significant announcement to share with firefighters and the
communities they serve."

- Greg Horton
President, Ontario Professional Fire Fighters Association

"This funding is important to municipal fire services across Ontario, but it’'s more than
money — it’s a commitment to our safety, our health, and the communities we serve. For
the members of the Toronto Professional Firefighters Association, it means greater access
to the tools, training, and equipment that help us prevent cancer, manage new and
emerging risks like lithium-ion battery fires, and come home safely to our families after
every shift."

- Michael Smith
President, Toronto Professional Fire Fighters’ Association

Additional Resources
Apply for the Fire Protection Grant
Ontario Protecting Firefighters from Cancer-Causing Chemicals

2024 Fire Protection Grant Recipients



Ontario @

Learn about fire protection and prevention in Ontario

Media Contacts

Dakota Moniz
Solicitor General’s Office
Dakota.Moniz@ontario.ca

Brent Ross
Communications Branch
SOLGEN.Media@ontario.ca




